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OUR VALUES:
INTEGRITY I say what I mean and 
always do what’s right. 

CREATIVITY I consider 
situations from multiple angles and 
perspectives.

ACCOUNTABILITY I have 
courage to make decisions and take 
ownership for their outcomes. 

RESPECT I seek to understand and 
treat people how I would like to be 
treated. 

EXCELLENCE I take calculated 
risks to seek out better ways of 
doing things. 

These values translate to the 
acronym I CARE.

This Annual Report can be viewed 
online at www.moorabool.vic.
gov.au or can be obtained from all 
Council offices.

COUNCIL’S PURPOSE:

OUR VISION:
Viable and vibrant communities with 
unique identities.

OUR PURPOSE:
1.	The Moorabool Shire Council 

exists to co-design local solutions 
that enable the Moorabool 
communities to prosper now and 
into the future.

2.	The Council exists to be in 
service to the communities of the 
Moorabool Shire. 

3.	The Council is accountable to the 
community and has legislative 
responsibilities.

Moorabool Shire Council’s 2018-19 
Annual Report reflects Council’s 
performance during the year against 
the goals set in the Council Plan 
2017-2021.

This report is intended as a point of 
reference for Council, residents and 
businesses in the Shire, community 
organisations and government 
departments.

The Council Plan 2017-2021 is 
structured under the following 
Strategic Framework:

•	 Providing good governance and 
leadership.

•	 Minimising environmental impact.

•	 Stimulating economic 
development.

•	 Improving social outcomes.

WELCOME
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A MESSAGE FROM THE 
MAYOR AND THE CEO

The result of our income 
statement reflects a total 
comprehensive gain of $82.147 
million. This includes a $4.12 
million increase in external 
monetary contributions due to 
the timing of significant developer 
contributions received in 2018/19, 
and a $4.94 million increase 
in non-monetary contributions 
due a substantial amount of 
development throughout the Shire. 

This enabled Council to increase 
its capital works spend by 
almost $4 million, including 
new streetscapes for Ballan 
and Gordon, continued work on 
the Bacchus Marsh Recreation 
Racecourse Reserve and 
significant investment in attracting 
new business to the Shire.

Other achievements for the 
2018/19 period include digitising 
many components of our 
service delivery, such as grant 
applications, and upgrading our 
GIS platform.

You can read about more 
highlights from the year, and the 
challenges our Council has faced, 
starting on page 9.

We hope you enjoy reading the 
2018/19 Annual Report.

Paul Tatchell, Mayor

Derek Madden, CEO

Cr. Paul Tatchell, Mayor Derek Madden, CEO

We are pleased to present the 
Annual Report for the period July 
2018 to June 2019.

Thank you to all our staff who 
have helped deliver significant 
strategic work, an extensive 
capital works program and pushed 
forward on many projects that will 
drive change and improvement 
in the digital space, as well as 
catering for the physical population 
growth of our towns.

Moorabool is growing at a rate 
greater than we all anticipated 
and this poses many challenges 
for our Council. It also provides 
a chance to deliver investment 
opportunities, better services and 
assets to our communities. We 
are committed to doing this into 
the future.
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COUNCILLORS

The current Moorabool Shire was 
established in 1994 following an 
Order of Parliament under the 
Victorian Local Government Act to 
amalgamate the Shires.

Moorabool Shire is divided 
into four Council wards. East 
Moorabool is represented by four 
Councillors, Central, Woodlands 
and West Moorabool are each 
represented by one Councillor.

They are selected by the 
community for a four-year term 
and are responsible for setting 
the overall strategic direction of 
the Council and overseeing the 
performance of the organisation 
on behalf of the community.

Councillors attend Ordinary 
Meetings of Council on the first 
Wednesday of every month and 
make decisions on the items listed 
in the Council meeting agenda. 

Where required, they also attend 
Special Meetings of Council to 
make decisions on important 
issues.

EAST MOORABOOL WARD

Cr Tonia Dudzik 

Phone: 0407 014 489 
Email: tdudzik@moorabool.vic.gov.au

EAST MOORABOOL WARD

Cr John Keogh

DEPUTY MAYOR 

Phone: 0437 188 261 
Email: jkeogh@moorabool.vic.gov.au

EAST MOORABOOL WARD

Cr Jarrod Bingham 

Phone: 0429 392 308 
Email: jbingham@moorabool.vic.gov.au

EAST MOORABOOL WARD

Cr David Edwards

Phone: 0435 326 370 
Email: dedwards@moorabool.vic.gov.au

WEST MOORABOOL WARD

Cr Tom Sullivan 

Phone: 0418 323 221 
Email: tsullivan@moorabool.vic.gov.au

WOODLANDS WARD

Cr Pat Toohey 
Phone: 0439 009 677 or 5334 0648 
Email: ptoohey@moorabool.vic.gov.au

CENTRAL WARD

Cr Paul Tatchell

MAYOR 

Phone: 0407 108 025 
Email: ptatchell@moorabool.vic.gov.au
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Moorabool is made up of 64 
localities, hamlets and towns.  

About three quarters of the Shire 
is water catchments, state forests 
and national parks.  Moorabool 
boasts breathtaking landscapes, 
national parks, forests, gorges, 
mineral springs and tourism 
attractions.  Key attractions 
include the Wombat State Forest, 
Brisbane Ranges National Park, 
Lerderderg State Park, Werribee 
Gorge State Park and the Bacchus 
Marsh Avenue of Honour.

SNAPSHOT OF 
MOORABOOL

Moorabool Shire is a fast growing 
semi-rural municipality ideally 
placed between Melbourne, 
Geelong and Ballarat. It is equi-
distant to Melbourne International 
and Avalon Airports and close 
to the sea ports of Geelong and 
Melbourne. The Shire is positioned 
along the major road and rail 
transport corridors between 
Melbourne and Adelaide.

It offers residents picturesque 
and friendly surrounds with the 
vibrancy of an active, growing 
community.

Residents can opt for an urban 
lifestyle in towns like Bacchus 
Marsh (45km west of the 
Melbourne CBD) and Ballan (70km 
west of the Melbourne CBD) or 
enjoy life in one of Moorabool’s 
small towns and hamlets, 
rural open spaces and natural 
surrounds. MOORABOOL

SHIRE
COUNCIL

MELBOURNE
INTERNATIONAL

AIRPORT89Km

84Km

71Km52Km

PORT OF
MELBOURNE

PORT OF
GEELONG

AVALON
AIRPORT
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We acknowledge the 
Indigenous history of 
Moorabool Shire.  

The land was traditionally 
occupied by and connected 
to a number of Aboriginal 
communities, most notably the 
Wathaurung Tribe in the south 
and west, the Wurundjeri Tribe in 
the east and the Dja Dja Wurrung 
Tribe in the north west.

TRADITIONAL
OWNERS
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Moorabool Shire is a popular tree 
change destination, growing as 
fast as any other local government 
area in inland regional Victoria.

The official population of 
Moorabool Shire in 2018 was 
34,030.  More than half the 
population lives in Bacchus 
Marsh and surrounds. The Shire’s 
second largest population can 
be found in and around Ballan. 
The remaining population is 
distributed throughout the large 
number of small towns, hamlets 
and farming areas within the 
Shire. The majority of people 
who relocate to Moorabool Shire 
are young families seeking a 
semi-rural lifestyle.  Moorabool’s 
demographic reflects this trend.

POPULATION GROWTH
When considering future growth 
of Moorabool Shire, Council has 
identified three key residential 
locations where the majority of 
that growth will occur. These 
locations – Bacchus Marsh, 
Ballan and Gordon – already have 
established infrastructure to 
accommodate new growth. As 
part of the Moorabool 2041 (Small 
Towns and Clusters Settlement 
Strategy) framework, Council 
is also consulting with other 
settlements such as Wallace 
and Bungaree in reference to the 
growth opportunities. 

The population of the Shire is 
estimated to increase by 72% 
between 2015 and 2041 to 
80,000.

OUR 
POPULATION

2015

2018

2041
es

timated

34,030

31,700

80,000
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OUR
BUSINESS

BUSINESS PROFILE
Traditional economic drivers such 
as agriculture, timber, wool and 
beef production and mineral, 
stone and water extraction 
remain extremely important to 
Moorabool’s economy.

Residential growth, construction, 
retail and service industries, light 
manufacturing and tourism are 
emerging factors of growth.

The Shire’s growing population 
provides tremendous 
opportunities for business growth 
and investment. The excellent 
services we provide, and those 
planned for the future, will see 
Moorabool become an even more 
attractive prospect.
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Implementation of the 
Maintenance Management 
System
The implementation of an electronic 
maintenance management system has seen 
a shift from manual to electronic/automated 
processes for many of Council’s inspection 
and maintenance activities, with data being 
captured by field staff using GPS enabled 
tablets.

In the first year of implementation, staff 
used the system for the management and 
maintenance of roads, paths, bridges, trees, 
playgrounds, and public amenity cleaning, as 
well as asset data collection.

The next phase of implementation will 
focus on buildings, street sweeping, open 
space (active and passive), and full system 
integration (customer request, GIS and asset 
management systems).

Successful Grant Funding
Council was successful in securing grants for a 
range of improvement projects.

The full list of successful grants are on page 
82.

Review of Council’s Asset 
Management Plans
Council is responsible for the management 
of over $500M of assets across the Shire, 
divided into four asset classes: transport; 
buildings; open space; and water.  The Asset 
Management Plan (AMP) for each asset 
class outlines how Council will manage 
those assets, providing an agreed level of 
service for the best financial value, to meet 
the requirements of the current and future 
community.

The plans present four ten-year funding 
scenarios for consideration, outlining the 
impact on backlog and renewal gap to assist in 
informing future capital works.

A review of the existing AMPs has been 
undertaken to improve the document format, 
provide succinct and valuable information 
including graphical summaries, and to meet 
proposed changes to legislation. The AMPs 
directly link to the Long Term Financial Plan 
and improvement actions identified within 
the Plan will feed into Council’s Asset 
Management Strategy.

Development of a Graffiti Policy
As a first step to helping address the negative 
impact of graffiti, a Graffiti Management 
Policy was developed to provide an overview 
of Council’s approach to graffiti management 
and the methodology for the removal of graffiti 
from Council and other assets.

Council successfully obtained grant funding 
for the development of a Graffiti Management 
Strategy (to be delivered in the 2019/20 
financial year).

COMMUNITY ASSETS 
& INFRASTRUCTURE 
Asset Management

H
ig

h
li

gh
ts



11Part   1

COMMUNITY ASSETS 
& INFRASTRUCTURE

Asset Management

Large Asset Base & Future 
Growth
As a growth Council with significant future 
development forecast, particularly for the 
Merrimu and Parwan areas, pressure on 
existing infrastructure and the need for new 
infrastructure and services is going to be 
critical for Council to manage and resource 
in order to support the current and future 
communities.

Staff Attraction & Retention

As a semi-rural municipality, located between 
the major centres of Ballarat, Geelong and 
Melbourne, attracting and retaining suitably 
qualified and experienced staff is a challenge 
faced by Council.Ch
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Development of Educational 
Messaging to Improve Kerbside 
Recycling
Bold new messaging graphics were designed 
for application onto the contractor’s fleet 
of waste management trucks. These were 
designed to improve community habits in 
“getting it right on bin night”, to reducing 
contamination and lost resources in kerbside 
bin streams.  

This truck livery design will be a standard 
resource for related educational materials and 
campaigns throughout the coming years.

Roll out of E-Waste Landfill Ban
Council successfully applied for State 
Government funding to erect infrastructure 
at its main transfer stations.  The custom-
designed sheds accept and safely store 
electrical and electronic waste (‘e-waste’) in 
readiness for collection by specialised re-
processors. 

The project was completed in time for the 
commencement of the 1 July 2019 State-wide 
ban from landfill.  It ties in with print, radio, 
and electronic educational collateral created 
by Sustainability Victoria that help the public 
identify and responsibly dispose of e-waste. 

Audit of Closed Landfills
An audit of closed landfill sites across the 
Shire has been completed, using the Local 
Council Self-Assessment Tool for Closed 
Landfill Environmental Risk, a resource 
developed by the Environmental Protection 
Agency (EPA). 

The self-assessment tool provides a basic 
assessment of the level of risk to public health 
and the environment. Council officers continue 
to engage with EPA and consultants with 
regards to environmental monitoring and site 
remediation to ensure Council continues to 
comply with requirements.

Review of the Greenwaste 
Service
A review was completed of Council’s 
greenwaste service and a subsequent report 
was generated resulting in Council resolving to 
permanently implement the non-compulsory 
kerbside greenwaste collection service within 
residential and low density residential zoned 
(urban) areas of the municipality.

Capital Improvement Program
The Operations construction team successfully 
assisted with the delivery of Council’s 
annual capital improvement program. The 
team completed Ballan-Meredith Road, 
Morrisons pavement widening, Duncan 
Street, Ballan kerb and channel replacement, 
Myrniong-Korobeit Road, Myrniong pavement 
rehabilitation works, Ironbark Road, Ingliston 
gravel road resheeting and sealing, Edols 
Street, Ballan pavement reconstruction, 
Ingliston Road, Ingliston preparation and seal 
works, Glenmore Road, Rowsley shoulder 
resheeting and seal, and Sydney Street, 
Bacchus Marsh kerb and channel upgrade.

Tree Planting Program
The annual tree planting program was 
completed, which involved infill and new 
planting of 625 trees across the Shire. The 
plantings are a blend of natives and exotics 
depending upon the location. 

Careful planning and consideration were 
given with regards to the species of trees, 
the environment, climate, soil conditions, 
aesthetics and the growth of the trees. This 
year’s planting was concentrated on Bacchus 
Marsh, Ballan, Mount Egerton, Myrniong and 
Dunnstown.

Elaine Township Landscape 
Improvements
Landscaping, including tree planting and 
garden bed establishment, to the Elaine 
township was completed, amounting to 
approximately $35k, in line with Township 
Improvement Plans.

COMMUNITY ASSETS 
& INFRASTRUCTURE

Operations
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COMMUNITY ASSETS
& INFRASTRUCTURE

Operations

Management of Waste and 
Recycling in the Shire
Challenges arising from the 2017/18 
overseas restrictions imposed on accepted 
recyclables has meant a difficult year, as local 
governments and industry sought investment 
commitments from State and Federal 
Governments into onshore initiatives. 

The Shire’s population and community interest 
around waste management correspondingly 
continues to grow. Council and its contractors 
have therefore experienced added pressures 
around not only keeping up with demand, but 
also carrying out these vital services in more 
sustainable ways.

Emergency Response
Maintenance crews responded during and 
the immediate aftermath of the major storm 
event in late December 2018, at times 
working around the clock to ensure essential 
infrastructure was kept operational for the 
community.
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Wittick St, Darley – Pavement 
Reconstruction
The Capital Works team delivered pavement 
rehabilitation works in Wittick Street, Darley 
between Halletts Way and Nicholson Street 
using a foam bitumen treatment.  This allowed 
the works to be completed more quickly and 
without major reconstruction of the road.  This 
section of road was experiencing significant 
pavement distress which was affecting 
other associated road infrastructure.  The 
road rehabilitation in association with recent 
footpath construction works has created 
an improved asset for both drivers and 
pedestrians within the area. The area is heavily 
utilised by local residents, neighbouring school 
and child care facilities and Council office 
traffic.

Inglis St, Ballan – Streetscape 
Upgrade Works (Stage 2)
Stage 2 of the Streetscape Upgrade works in 
Inglis Street, Ballan between Cowie Street and 
Fisken Street was completed in 2018/19. 

The upgrade works continued the significant 
investment by Council into Ballan’s local 
community (with the final stage of the 
streetscape works to be  delivered through the 
2019/20 Capital Improvement Program). 

The project adopted a streetscape style which 
included new bluestone paving and asphalt 
treatments, with upgrades to street furniture 
including seating, garbage bins, bike racks, 
new gardens beds and additional tree planting 
to improve Ballan’s signature autumn foliage. 

Subdivision Development 
Increase

In 2018/2019 development engineering 
oversaw the construction of 19 residential 
subdivision stages, producing a total of 424 
new lots. 

These subdivisions transferred approximately 
$14M worth of new assets to Council. This is 
nearly double the average number of lots over 
the previous three years (220 pa).

Windfarm Development
Moorabool has experienced significant 
investment in wind energy projects within the 
region in recent years with 3 separate wind 
farms constructing in excess of 150 turbines 
throughout the south of the municipality. 
The construction of these windfarms has put 
pressure on Council’s road infrastructure with 
a large increase in heavy vehicle movements 
and volume of general traffic. The Engineering 
Services team has been working with all 
windfarms’ entities to monitor and manage 
the damage to the Shire’s local road network 
during construction. 

Flood Recovery Program
In December 2018, the municipality 
experienced a rainfall event which had 
a significant impact on specific road 
infrastructure throughout various areas of the 
Shire.

The rainfall event was declared by the Federal 
and State Governments, therefore Council was 
able to source funding to rehabilitate damaged 
infrastructure. The Engineering Services team 
led the reinstatement effort by undertaking 
initial assessments of the infrastructure 
damage and worked with State and Federal 
Government agencies to determine eligible 
infrastructure for restoration funding.  
Reinstatement works commenced in June 
2019 and will continue until later in 2019/20. 

Subdivision Development 
Increase
The 2019/20 financial year has started with 11 
stages under construction, with a further yield 
of 293 lots.

This increase poses a challenge on workloads.

COMMUNITY ASSETS 
& INFRASTRUCTURE

Engineering
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Bacchus Marsh Urban Growth 
Framework 
Approval of the Bacchus Marsh Urban Growth 
Framework and Bacchus Marsh Housing 
Strategy was granted by the Minister for 
Planning in November 2018. The approval of 
the framework was the culmination of several 
years of joint work and collaboration between 
Council and the Victorian Planning Authority.

Both the Housing Strategy and the Growth 
Framework set a strong vision and direction 
for the growth and development of Bacchus 
Marsh to 2041. 

Growth of the Municipality 
There has been significant increase in interest 
in development within Moorabool Shire, as the 
municipality is seen as a desirable place to live 
and work. This is a positive but it has resulted 
in an increase in development applications.

Economic Development Business 
Breakfast
In May 2019 Council held the first Moorabool 
Breakfast at St Anne’s Winery.

More than 100 people attended and heard 
from Council’s CEO Derek Madden about the 
challenges and opportunities facing the Shire 
with the increased population growth that is 
expected in Bacchus Marsh and Ballan. 

Nathan Potter from VECCI presented on how 
VECCI can help businesses develop and grow.

Another business breakfast is scheduled for 
late 2019.

Planning is being undertaken to increase the 
level of support offered to local businesses 
and further activities are planned for the year 
ahead.

COMMUNITY 
PLANNING 
Strategic and Sustainable Development
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Implement Phase 2 (Intranet) of 
the Digital Strategy (2017-2019)
A fully functioning Intranet was implemented 
on the LiveTiles platform. The establishment 
of the Intranet set a global record time in 
LiveTiles history (3.5 weeks start to finish). 

Implement Phase 3 (GIS 
replacement) of the Digital 
Strategy (2017-2019)
As part of implementing Phase 3 of the 
Digital Strategy (2017-2019), the current 
Geographic Information System (GIS) platform 
was successfully moved to Spectrum Spatial 
Analyst (SSA) platform across all Council 
service units with minimum disruption.

Improvements to Customer Needs
While Council is working to improve 
transparency to respond to the needs of 
our customers and community, outdated 
technology solutions are proving challenging.

In order to respond to community and 
customer’s expectations for convenience, 
a focus on mobile and digital channels to 
communicate with ratepayers and to provide 
better services is required.

Development of ICT Disaster 
Recovery Plan 
A draft ICT Disaster Recovery Plan has been 
developed. The plan is a living document that 
will be updated on a regular basis.

PC Refresh 
Successful completion of new hardware 
rollout across the entire Council with minimal 
disruption.

Project Phoenix Commencement 
To support strategic goals, we have 
undertaken an exciting IT transformational 
program (Project Phoenix) to reduce 
operational cost, enhance mobility, 
improve customer experience and end user 
productivity.

COMMUNITY PLANNING

Information and Communication Technology
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Clarendon Community Centre 
Opening
The Clarendon Community Centre was 
officially opened in March 2019.  This project 
was an outcome of funding provided by 
the State Government to the recovering 
community after the Scotsburn Fires in 
December 2015.  The project was managed 
by the Committee of Management and will 
be a wonderful community asset for future 
generations.

Livestreaming Community 
Meetings for Emergency 
Incidents
In January 2019 the Lerderderg area was 
impacted by a fire that started through a 
lightning strike.  Moorabool along with the CFA 
and Forest Fire Management Victoria held a 
community meeting as the fire was burning 
and for the first time it was livestreamed on 
Facebook to provide the community with all 
of the first hand information from the Incident 
Controller.

Safer Together Project – Mt 
Egerton
The first cross tenure fire mitigation project 
was funded in Mt Egerton.  This project saw 
major fire mitigation works undertaken on land 
that was owned by Council, the Education 
Department and the Department of Land 
Water and Planning.  This project saw major 
weed infestation removed and a treatment 
plan put in place for further follow up.

Increased Number of Emergency 
Events
Moorabool saw an increased number of 
emergency events occur across the 2018/19 
year.  A further fire in Scotsburn impacted 
residents, a fire in the Lerderderg area and 
flooding challenges that occurred in December 
2018, May 2019 and June 2019 saw major 
impacts on community and Council emergency 
staffing resourcing.  Moorabool also saw an 
increased number of house fires in the area.

COMMUNITY PLANNING

Emergency Management
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Roadside Pest Plant and Animal 
Program
During the 2018/19 financial year Council 
completed its annual roadside pest plant 
and animal control program which targets 
the management of serrated tussock, gorse, 
blackberry and rabbit warren destruction on 
selected roads. 

In total 1,220km of roadside vegetation was 
managed for these target species:

Gorse: 420km
Blackberry: 274km
Serrated Tussock: 335km
Rabbit warrens: 191km

Blackberry Control - Gordon
A partnership between a local landowner and 
the emergency management and environment 
teams saw 5.7km of dense blackberry 
removed from Old Melbourne Road, Gordon.

Gardens for Wildlife
Working in partnership with local Landcare 
groups, the Gardens for Wildlife program was 
launched in Moorabool Shire. The program 
engaged residents in urban areas about local 
plants and animals and activities they can take 
on the property to attract more native wildlife. 

Council was successful in receiving a grant to 
assist in the continued delivery of this program 
with Landcare groups in 2019/20.

COMMUNITY PLANNING

Environment
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Increased Participation in Early Start 
Kindergarten

An improvement area for the Child, Youth 
and Family Services team in 2018 was to 
streamline the processes for enrolment and 
access for children eligible for Early Start 
Kindergarten. The goal was to improve 
outcomes for children through increased 
participation.  

In 2017 Moorabool had 26.9% of children 
known to Child Protection enrolled in Early 
Start Kindergarten.  In 2018 this increased 
significantly to 71.4% of children known 
to Child Protection enrolled in Early Start 
Kindergarten.  The Victoria State average for 
children known to Child Protection enrolled in 
Early Start Kindergarten in 2018 was 26.9%.  

The partnership and change processes 
between Council, local agencies and 
kindergarten providers has resulted in 
a significant increase in participation in 
Moorabool for Early Start kindergarten.

Van Go Project
In February 2017, the Council and WRISC 
Family Violence formed a partnership for the 
Van Go Project, with WRISC being successful 
in securing State Government funding of $2M 
for the two-year pilot project. Van Go is an 
innovative model of child-centred therapeutic 
services which is provided to infants, children 
and young people and their families who have 
experienced family violence. At the time of the 
establishment of the service there was a lack 
of these types of services and supports for 
families and children in Moorabool. 

The Van Go pilot ceased on 30 June, 2019 
and Council are advocating to ensure that this 
important service continues to be provided 
locally to Moorabool residents. 

Family Violence is a significant health and 
wellbeing issue for Moorabool residents. 

Youth Engagement Support (YES) 
Program

The Youth Services team successfully obtained 
an Empower Youth Grant of $471,000 from 
the Victorian State Government.  As a result, 
an additional youth worker who provides 
intensive, coordinated support to young people 
to strengthen their health and wellbeing, has 
been appointed.

In 2017/18, there were 488 recorded police 
callouts for family violence incidents in the 
Moorabool Shire, representing a higher rate 
across the population than the Victorian 
average (incidents per 100,000 people). 

Council is hopeful that ongoing funding 
will be secured through the Victorian State 
Government for Van Go. Cessation of the 
service locally would mean Moorabool 
residents will no longer be able to access 
specialist family violence therapy within the 
Moorabool Shire. While WRISC Ballarat is 
funded to provide services into Moorabool, 
in the year prior to the establishment of the 
Moorabool Van Go funding they saw 31 
clients from the Moorabool Shire. In the year 
following the establishment of the Van Go 
service locally in Moorabool, WRISC Family 
Violence saw 231 clients.

COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT	
Child, Youth & Family Services
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Age Well Live Well and Access and 
Inclusion Plan 

The Age Well Live Well Strategy and Disability 
Access and Inclusion Plan (Phase 2) 2018-2021 
– Integrated Action Plan, set out Council’s plan 
for the provision of services, programs and 
infrastructure to meet the needs of a diverse 
and changing population, and to create an age-
friendly municipality. It built on the initial Age 
Well Live Well Strategy and Disability Access 
and Inclusion Plan 2015-2021, by adding new 
actions, responsibilities and timelines, and 
incorporated the World Health Organisation’s 
eight domains for an Age-Friendly Community.

The Plan outlined how each goal will be 
achieved with detailed actions, responsibilities 
and timelines, and included outcomes and 
indicators to assist Council measure progress 
and success. 

Age Friendly Project 

The Active Ageing and Community Access 
team rolled out the Age Friendly project where 
the aim was to make Moorabool a great place 
to grow old. Six Age Friendly Ambassadors 
were recruited from the community to 
undertake extensive community consultation 
to see how we could fund Age Friendly 
projects and included the implementation of 
the following:
•	 A very active Positive Ageing Facebook 

page which currently has a reach of 2000 
people per week.

•	 The Bungaree newsletter and directory 
to better inform the community regarding 
groups, services and events.

•	 Rejuvenation of the Bungaree Community 
Noticeboard. 

•	 A Community Newsletter Committee has 
formed to develop a community driven 
newsletter. The Project was able to expand 
upon a voluntary service provided through 
the Shire’s library service, to include and 
rollout the Be Connected Program to other 
areas within Moorabool Shire. Response to 
the program to date has been positive.

Positive Ageing Advisory Committee 

A Positive Ageing Advisory Committee was 
established with eight Moorabool residents, 
representation from Ballan and District Health 
and Care and Djerriwarrh Health Services to 
provide an opportunity for informed discussion 
on issues impacting  older folk and to increase 
community awareness of the needs of older 
members of the community. 

Bacchus Marsh Dementia Alliance 

The purpose of the Bacchus Marsh Dementia 
Alliance was to improve dementia awareness 
within the Bacchus Marsh community and 
reduce the stigma associated with dementia, 
enabling people living with dementia to remain 
actively involved in their community.

The Dementia Alliance aim was to inform 
and guide the development of a Dementia 
Friendly Community Action Plan and play an 
advisory role in the future implementation and 
evaluation of this Plan. 

Moorabool Shire Council and Djerriwarrh 
Health co-lead the establishment, 
implementation and evaluation of the Bacchus 
Marsh Dementia Alliance.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

Active Ageing and Community Access
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Aged Care Reforms 

Since 2013 the aged and disability sectors 
have been undergoing transformational reform, 
including the transfer of responsibility for 
funding and regulation of aged and disability 
services to the Commonwealth Government. 
These reforms had a profound impact on 
Councils and their role in planning, funding and 
delivering aged care. 

In addition, a new Quality and Safety 
Framework has been applied to Aged Care 
services. Whilst all of these changes have 
been implemented, Council has still provided 
a high-quality service in tandem to over 750 
clients.  

An Ageing Population 

There is a projected 88% increase in persons 
aged 65 years and over between the years 
2016 to 2031. In addition, Dementia Australia 
currently predicts a 5-fold increase in the rate 
of dementia in Moorabool between 2019 and 
2041. The demand for home support services 
will increase exponentially with the increase in 
the ageing population and a greater desire for 
choice in aged care and greater autonomy.

. 
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Digitalisation of Service Delivery

The Community & Recreation Development 
Unit transitioned a number of its key 
processes from inefficient manual paper 
methods to far more efficient and progressive 
digital alternatives.  The digital transition has 
resulted in a range of Council improvements 
and community benefits.

The Council Community Grants Program is 
now hosted by SmartyGrants, the leading 
community grants administration portal in 
Australasia.

Council has transformed from a paper 
recreational facility application to an online 
booking system powered by IMS.  The 
new platform uses automation and allows 
the community to view facility information, 
including availability, before making application.  

Finally, Council has transitioned its digital 
engagement platform to Engagement 
Hub.  The new platform provides far 
more community engagement tools and 
opportunities and will allow Council to more 
efficiently and effectively evaluate community 
feedback.

Community Grants Program

Council’s Community Grants Program 
has awarded $354,024 of grant funding 
to community groups and not for profit 
organisations during the 2018/19 financial 
year in comparison with previous years (17/18 
$150,811 and 16/17-$148,908). 

External Funding for Community 
Sporting Facilities 

During the past year, the Community and 
Recreation Development team have submitted 
grant applications. The full list is on page 82.

Pool Lifeguard Scholarship Program

In 2018/2019 the project of delegating 
seven pool lifeguard scholarships to young 
Moorabool residents aged 16-25 was 
introduced. The scholarship consisted of 
supplying relevant qualifications and seasonal 
employment at Moorabool’s swimming pools.

In line with Council’s strategic objectives, this 
project aimed to give successful applicants 
employment as a Pool Lifeguard across 
Moorabool’s swimming pools who otherwise 
may not have the opportunity to hold this 
position.

The Pool Lifeguard scholarship program was 
recently nominated for the Best Regional/
Rural Industry Contribution award at the 
annual Victorian Parks and Leisure Australia 
conference held in May. While the program did 
not receive the award, the nomination was an 
outstanding achievement for all involved in the
successful program. It is intended the program 
will continue in future years.

Library Programs

Our Library Services had a very successful 
year, running a huge range of programs, some 
for the first time. Programs included:
•	 The Paperwork Lounge
•	 The Peter Carey Short Story Awards
•	 Moorabool Makers
•	 After School Club
•	 Book Chats
•	 1000 Books Before School

Programs for all ages continued to be a major 
feature of the Library Service. 

There were 229 children’s programs attracting 
more than 6,000 attendees. In addition, 
114 events were held for adults with more 
than 9,000 attendees and 45 digital literacy 
sessions were held with 256 attendees.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

Community and Recreation Development

H
ig

h
li

gh
ts



23Part   1

Seasonal Outdoor Pools

Unreliable weather conditions and a 
relatively transient workforce made keeping 
Moorabool’s outdoor pools open for the public 
a challenge at times, however staff worked 
hard to mitigate these challenges which 
resulted in a 28% increase in attendance for 
the 2018/2019 season.

Instability of Technology Platforms

The instability of the technology platforms 
to support workflow and community 
responsiveness was an ongoing challenge in 
2018-2019.  Issues with the community grants 
and community engagement portals led to 
community frustration and inefficiencies in 
workflow.  This has been addressed with the 
introduction of 2 new portals.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

Community and Recreation Development
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Introduction of Process Mapping 
as a Business Improvement Tool
The People and Organisational Development 
team introduced the use of process mapping 
as a business improvement tool to streamline 
processes and highlight inefficiencies. This 
has enabled the identification of several 
opportunities for improvement including non-
value add activities resulting in efficiencies 
in both the Recruitment and Employee 
Maintenance processes.

Business Excellence - Service 
Planning 
The frameworks support improved business 
knowledge, focusing on aligning and managing 
key result areas. The Service Plans articulate 
Purpose, Services, Value, Customers, 
Stakeholders, Focus, Challenges and 
Improvements to ensure clarity and alignment, 
and using visual management techniques to 
improve awareness and engagement across 
the organisation.  

Payroll 
A procedure manual and payroll training to 
conduct the fortnightly payroll function has 
ensured there is a backup resource. 

Electronic timesheets have been rolled out 
across the organisation for all employees 
that have access to a computer, reducing the 
number of manual timesheet entries. Single 
Touch Payroll has been implemented in line 
with the legislative requirements from the 
Australian Taxation Office.

Workcover 
Improved case management with process 
improvements ensure we meet the 
requirements of WorkSafe. This activity has 
reduced days lost with return to work plans 
developed to return injured workers back to 
work where possible.

PEOPLE &
CULTURE

Changes to Reporting Lines
Changes in the team management position 
resulted in periods of increased workloads 
resulting in the need for the team to step up 
and manage throughout this period.  However, 
the changed reporting structure directly 
into the CEO ensures greater organisational 
development focus and support for key 
initiatives as well as appropriate escalation and 
confidentiality around key people matters.

Digital Transformation 
The move to greater digital transformation 
and the need to work differently and think 
differently around processes and systems has 
been a change across the business, which 
initially increased workloads and people 
understanding new paperless processes.

Payroll – Alignment of Enterprise 
Agreement and Payroll System
There have been several changes to the 
payroll system required to deliver new pay 
configuration for payroll entitlements tied 
into the Enterprise Agreement.  Manual 
processing/monitoring has been increased 
as the system does not allow for required 
condition changes and is not user-friendly or 
responsive to Moorabool’s needs.

Extra procedures have been added to facilitate 
manual processes and as a result the payroll 
system is an area of improvement focus.
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Procurement of Low Interest 
Loans for Community 
Infrastructure
A successful application was made under 
the Community Sports Infrastructure Loan 
Scheme for the Bacchus Marsh Racecourse 
Recreation Reserve project and the sports 
ground lighting project, resulting in $8.6 million 
in heavily subsidised low interest loans to fast 
track the construction of important community 
infrastructure projects.

Implemented GPS Tracking 
Implementation of GPS tracking for operational 
vehicles and plant and machinery will result 
in improved safety and better visibility of 
plant and vehicle use. This will result in better 
resource allocation decisions in the future.

Population Growth in an 
Environment of Significant 
Change
Moorabool Shire experienced a significant 
growth in both population and tenement 
numbers in the 2018/19 year. As population 
and tenement numbers grow, internal 
resources are continually stretched to meet 
increasing demand. The implementation of 
new corporate systems has required careful 
resource planning to ensure customer service 
standards and project priorities do not decline.  
This will continue to be a focus for future 
years.

Evolution of the Finance 
Function
The traditional view of the finance function as 
being the corporate scorekeeper is changing 
and the finance department is continually 
being challenged to evolve into a solution 
focussed and value adding business unit of the 
Council.  To this end, the finance department 
implemented business partnering and has 
focussed on increased collaboration with 
business units to help drive accountability and 
improved organisational performance. 

Budgeting and Reporting
Continued implementation of prudent financial 
frameworks and associated controls has 
resulted in Moorabool Shire enjoying an 
increasing level of financial sustainability and 
improved financial results.  For the 2018/19 
financial year, the finance team undertook a 
review of significant finance related policies, 
made significant changes and enhancements 
to its long-term financial plans and has put 
measures in place to ensure better visibility 
over future financial risks.
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ORGANISATIONAL 
STRUCTURE

Chief Executive Officer

Derek Madden

General Manager - Community Planning

Satwinder Sandhu

Coordinator 
Communications 
& CEO Office

Dianne Elshaug
Media & PR Officer

Genevieve Clark

• Statutory Planning & Community Safety

• Strategic & Sustainable Development

• Information & Communication Technology

• Emergency ManagementGeneral Manager
Community Assets & Infrastructure

Phil Jeffrey

General Manager
Community Development

Sally Jones Contract to 3-12-2019

Chief Financial Officer

Steve Ivelja

Executive Manager - People & Culture

Karen Jansen

• Operations
• Engineering
• Asset Management

• Active Ageing & Community Access

• Child, Youth & Family

• Community Recreation Development

• Governance, Risk & Corporate Planning

• Finance

• People & Culture

Council appoints a Chief Executive Officer (CEO) who 
is accountable for the day to day management of 
operations in accordance with the strategic directions 
of the Council Plan (2017-2021).

As at June 30 2019, there were three General 
Managers, a Chief Financial Officer and an Executive 
Manager making up the executive team.
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EMPLOYEE LISTING 
BY GENDER
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Insurable Risk Review 
Workshop

A workshop was organised based 
on the recommendations in the 
Victorian Auditor-General’s Office 
(VAGO) report of July 2018 and 
the recommendation of the 
Internal Audit of Risk Management 
– Environment Scan Review, to 
review the core insurable risks 
on public liability, professional 
indemnity and industrial special 
risks. 

First Aid and CPR

Regular First Aid and CPR training 
sessions are regularly conducted 
by qualified external training 
providers. This ensures our 
employees are up to date with 
compliance training and are well 
equipped to take the necessary 
action in case of an emergency. 

This training is offered throughout 
the year to ensure employees 
maintain relevant certification.

Health and Safety 
Representative

Health and Safety Representatives 
(HSRs) need relevant knowledge 
and skills to allow them to 
exercise their powers to promote 
and ensure the health and safety 
of members of their work-groups.

HSR training was conducted by 
qualified external training providers 
in 2018 for all new HSR’s.

Corporate Risk Register 
Workshop

A workshop was organised to 
brainstorm and develop the 
Corporate Risk Register for 
Council.  The workshop was 
facilitated by an external Risk 
Consultant. Sixteen corporate 
risks were identified during the 
session.

Insurance Related to Tree 
Roots and Road Works

A workshop for the Works and 
Parks & Gardens teams was 
organised to learn the legal 
aspects of an insurance claim. 

The training covered the topics 
tree roots and road works.

Fraud Awareness

Fraud Awareness Training was 
conducted in 6 sessions of 
2-hours each covering close to 
200 employees and managers.  
The training was conducted by an 
external provider.   

Insurance

An external company conducted 
in-house training for all managers, 
co-ordinators and key staff to 
handle insurance claims. The key 
take-away was to distinguish 
between customer feedback, 
complaints and claims and to learn 
about negligence and tort law.

Business Continuity Plan 

Training was conducted for the 
executive team, managers and 
co-ordinators on the concepts of 
Business Continuity Plan.  

The training was followed by a 
presentation by each manager 
on their respective critical sub-
function plans. 

A further workshop, called BCP 
Scenario Testing, was conducted 
later in the year to test the 
effectiveness of the sub-plans, 
assuming a scenario whereby 
Council had to continue providing 
the critical services with less than 
50% of employees available for 
work.

Emergency Management

Emergency Management Training 
is conducted every year with two 
types of training conducted - Fire 
Warden training with fire drills 
run at all office sites and a site 
evacuation drill. 

TRAINING
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RISK AND 
INSURANCE

The designated workplace audit 
inspection is undertaken with a 
schedule charted out for each 
area.  Managers and deputies 
responsible for an area have 
been notified and reminders 
sent to carry out the inspection. 
The inspections are conducted 
throughout the whole Council 
to identify areas that require 
attention. The inspections 
are logged into the Incident 
Management system with 
any supporting pictures and 
documentation.

StaySafe App
Council has invested in procuring 
licences for an app to ensure the 
safety of staff working in isolation. 
This app helps to locate a staff 
member in distress, when working 
in isolation or in remote locations.

Insurance 
2018-19 saw an overall increase 
in the cost of all insurance 
policies. Council’s insurance 
portfolio is maintained to ensure 
that corporate risk exposures are 
minimised.

As per the recommendation of 
the Victorian Auditor-General’s 
Office (VAGO) report of July 
2018, Council conducted a tender 
process to engage insurance 
brokers for 2019-20.

OHS Strategy
The Occupational Health and 
Safety Strategy has been 
developed and will now enter into 
the next phase enhancing our 
OHS systems and procedures for 
the organisation throughout 2019-
2021.

Sixteen Occupational Health and 
Safety procedures have been 
developed in accordance with 
the draft Occupational Health and 
Safety Management System. 

The draft OHS Strategy provides 
a platform for action to build a 
safety system that delivers a safer 
workplace and community. 

The two-year plan will drive our 
compliance along with focusing on 
proactive improvements that will 
foster a safe culture throughout 
Council. The plan provides a 
roadmap which by 2021 will 
have created a robust health 
and safety system which meets 
the requirements of the relevant 
Australian standard. 

One of the biggest drivers at the 
OHS Committee and Corporate 
Induction Training is to inform 
staff about their responsibilities 
to themselves and those around 
them in relation to OHS and 
to encourage staff to fill in an 
incident report if an incident or 
near miss occurs, even if there 
are no injuries.  Staff are also 
encouraged to notify the risk team 
of any hazards at their workplace.

The following documents related 
to risk management were adopted 
in 2018-19.

a.	Risk Management 
Framework

	 The Risk Management 
Framework is based on the risk 
management principles declared 
in ISO 31000:2018.

	 The Framework provides a 
guideline to manage the risks 
associated with the Council and 
outlines the risk management 
methodology (process) 
provided in ISO 31000:2018. 
The Framework maps the 
role of different governance 
structures supporting the 
Council at various levels and the 
documents required to manage 
these risks. 

b.	Strategic Risk Profiles
	 The nine strategic risks and 

their respective action plans 
were developed based on the 
Council Plan 2017-21. The 
strategic risks were derived at 
the two workshops conducted 
in succession on the 6 and 
13 August by an external 
consultant. The workshop was 
attended by the members of the 
executive team, managers, co-
ordinators and the risk team.

c.	Risk Management Policy
	 The Risk Management Policy 

describes the responsibilities 
related to risk at different 
levels of Council. The Risk 
Management Policy includes 
the Moorabool Shire Risk 
Appetite Statement.
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RISK MANAGEMENT 
FRAMEWORK

Audit and Risk 
Advisory Committee

Risk 
Management 
Steering Committee

Risk Mgt. Policy

OHS Policy

OHS Strategy

Strategic Risk Profile

Fraud Mgt. Policy

Safe Work Procedures

Safe Workplace

Key Performance Indicators

EXECUTIVE

MANAGERS/CO-ORDINATORS

GMs/MANAGERS

Risk Register Business 
Continuity Plan

SYSTEM VIEW

ORGANISATIONAL CULTURE

COUNCIL

EXECUTIVE (CEO & GMs)

RISK & OHS TEAM

OHS 
Committee
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PERFORMANCE

Council’s performance for the 
2018-19 year has been reported 
against strategic objectives to 
demonstrate how Council is 
performing in achieving the 2017- 
2021 Council Plan.

Performance has been measured 
as follows:
•	 Results achieved in relation to 

the strategic objectives in the 
Council Plan.

•	 Progress in relation to the 
major initiatives identified in the 
Budget.

•	 Services funded in the Budget 
and the persons or sections 
of the community who are 
provided those services.

•	 Results against the prescribed 
service performance indicators 
and measures.
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OUR PERFORMANCE
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 1: 
PROVIDING GOOD GOVERNANCE AND LEADERSHIP

Context 1A: Our Assets and Infrastructure

Context 1B: Our People

Context 1C: Our Business and Systems

The following statements reviewed the performance of Council against the 
Council Plan including results achieved in relation to the Strategic Objectives.

2018/19 RESULTS and ACHIEVEMENTS

Strategic Objective Projects Progress Comments

Review Asset Management Plan – Transport Completed A review of Council’s four existing Asset 
Management Plans has been completed.

The suite of updated plans will be 
presented to Council in late 2019 following 
the completion of a condition audit of 
Councils Road Infrastructure.

Review Asset Management Plan – Buildings Completed

Review Asset Management Plan - Water Completed

Review Asset Management Plan - Open 
Space

Completed

Produce State of the Assets Reports Completed
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2018/19 RESULTS and ACHIEVEMENTS

Strategic Objective Projects Progress Comments

Produce State of the Assets Reports Completed The first State of the Assets report has 
been prepared. The report will be updated 
in late 2019 following completion of the 
next Road Condition Audit.

Produce 10 Year Capital Improvement 
Programs - Year 2 Progress

Completed A Draft Capital Improvement Program 
for 2019/2020 has been developed and 
was adopted at the Ordinary Meeting of 
Council on Wednesday 3 July 2019. As 
this action is allocated over multiple years, 
the program is intended to be expanded 
to a ten-year program for the 2020/2021 
budget.

Deliver Annual Capital Improvement 
Programs (2017-2021) - Year 2 Progress

Completed The Capital Improvement Program for 
2018/19 achieved a completion rate of 
85.3%.

Finalise the Community Infrastructure 
Framework

In Progress Fitness for Purpose Assessments of 
pavilions, community venues, libraries, 
kindergartens and Maternal & Child 
Health Services has been completed 
and feedback from managers is being 
incorporated into the final framework. 
These meetings will confirm the 
appropriate scoring and weighting for each 
of the facilities.

The Community Infrastructure 
Framework was presented at the August 
2019 Ordinary Meeting of Council for 
endorsement for community consultation.

Develop Infrastructure Policy for Traffic 
Calming - Year 2 Progress

Completed The Traffic Calming Policy was adopted 
at the Ordinary Meeting of Council in July 
2018.

Councillor Development – Induction and 
Ongoing Professional Development (2017-
2021) - Year 2 Progress

Completed Ongoing support and training opportunities 
are available to Councillors as required.
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2018/19 RESULTS and ACHIEVEMENTS

Strategic Objective Projects Progress Comments

Prepare an Organisational Development 
Strategy

In Progress A Framework was developed for 
consultation.

The Framework includes strategies 
and plans for leadership development, 
employee engagement, integration of 
systems and process, future workforce 
planning including reward and
recognition. This action will be completed 
by November 2019.

Review the Customer Service Policy & 
Strategy

Deferred Due to other projects and issues impacting 
on customer service provision this item 
has been deferred into the 2019/20 year.

Develop an OHS Strategy In Progress The Occupational Health and Safety 
Strategy has been developed and will 
now enter into the next phase under 
the Council Plan to enhancing our 
OHS systems and procedures for the 
organisation throughout 2019-2021.

Enhance OHS Systems and Procedures 
(2017-2021) - Year 2 Progress

In Progress Sixteen Occupational Health and Safety 
procedures have been developed in 
accordance with the Draft Occupational 
Health and Safety Management System. 
The procedures were presented to the 
OHS Committee for review and feedback, 
with the project to be finalised in the first 
quarter of 2019/20.

Review Identified Corporate, Strategic 
and Operational Risks (2017-2021) - Year 2 
Progress

In Progress Council’s Strategic Risk Profile was 
adopted by the Council at its Ordinary 
Meeting on Wednesday 3 April 2019. 
Operational risks have been reviewed by 
individual service units. The management 
team has reviewed and identified the main 
corporate risks and these risks are being 
prepared for final review. Project will be 
finalised within the first quarter of 19/20.
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2018/19 RESULTS and ACHIEVEMENTS

Strategic Objective Projects Progress Comments

Implement Child Safety Standards across the 
Organisation

Completed The Child Safety Standards and Reportable 
Conduct Scheme Policies were adopted 
by Council at the Ordinary Meeting of 
Council in May 2018. An action plan has 
been developed and this is currently being 
implemented across the organisation.

A Child Safety Statement is now listed 
on job advertisements for Council and all 
new or updated staff position descriptions 
reflect Council’s commitment to child 
safety. The next step is for each manager 
to complete an action plan for their areas 
in relation to how their unit meets the 
Child Safety Standards.

Review the Risk Management Strategy and 
Framework

Completed The Risk Management Strategy and 
Framework has been completed. The 
Strategic Risk Profile, as a component of 
the Framework, was endorsed by Council 
at the Ordinary Meeting of Council in April 
2019.

Review the Local Law In Progress The Local Law was adopted at the August 
2019 Ordinary Meeting of Council.

Review the Municipal Strategic Statement 
(MSS) (2017-2019)

In Progress Delivery of the Moorabool Planning 
Scheme Review will be facilitated and 
the project finalised in 2019. The review 
comprises of 3 stages. The first two 
stages (review and recommendations) 
will be delivered by a Consultant, stage 
3 (amendment) will be undertaken by 
Council.

Stage One draft report was presented to 
Council for input at the June 2019 Section 
86 Moorabool Growth Management 
Committee. Stage 2 has commenced.

Develop an Enforcement Policy In Progress The draft policy has been completed with 
the view to trial for 12 months before full 
adoption.

Implement Phase 2 (Intranet) of the Digital 
Strategy (2017-2019)

Completed Successfully implemented fully functioning 
new intranet product on the LiveTiles 
platform.
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2018/19 RESULTS and ACHIEVEMENTS

Strategic Objective Projects Progress Comments

Streamline Integrated Corporate Reporting 
Systems and Methods

Completed A review of the corporate reporting 
systems and methods has been 
undertaken.  Actions have been identified, 
including the better use of electronic 
systems to report on performance
against agreed actions.

Implement Phase 3 (GIS replacement) of the 
Digital Strategy (2017-2019)

Completed The current Geographic Information 
System platform has now successfully 
moved to Spectrum Spatial Analyst 
platform across all Council’s service units.

Develop Service Plans for all Services (2017-
2019) - Year 2 Progress

Completed Service Plans have been developed for 
service units for 2018/2019.

Undertake Service Review in Accordance 
with the Policy and Framework

In Progress The Governance Service Review and 
Governance Framework will be presented 
for endorsement in the first quarter of 
2019/20.

Cleaning of Public Toilets: Undertake Service 
Review in Accordance with the Policy and 
Framework

Completed The Service Review has been completed.

Visitor Information Centre: Undertake Service 
Review in Accordance with the Policy and 
Framework

In Progress A Service Review of the Bacchus Marsh 
Visitor Information Centre has been 
completed. Workshops with volunteers 
were held in April 2019. Council 
officers are awaiting the outcomes of a 
State Government Review into Visitor 
Information Services. A presentation 
to Council outlining the review findings 
and proposed recommendations will be 
provided late 2019.

Annually Review the Long Term Financial 
Plan (2017-2021) - Year 2 Progress

Completed A revised long term financial plan was 
developed as part of the 2019/20 Adopted 
Budget and has been incorporated into the 
adopted Strategic Resource Plan.

Annually Review the need to make a Rate 
Cap Variation (2017-2021) - Year 2 Progress

Completed Council resolved to not apply for a rate cap 
variation at an Ordinary Meeting of Council 
held on 5 December 2018.
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2018/19 RESULTS and ACHIEVEMENTS

Strategic Objective Projects Progress Comments

Identify and Develop Shared Services with 
other Local Governments, Community and 
Private Sector Organisations (2017-2021) – 
Year 2 Progress

In Progress The project is being undertaken in phases 
over the four-year life of the Council 
Plan 2017-2021. Phase one was the 
preparation of a report to the Executive 
Management Team; phase 2 is the 
preparation of scoping/business plans 
for new or expanded shared service 
opportunities including the determination 
of charge out rates and preparation of 
marketing materials; phase three is the 
implementation of the new or expanded 
shared service opportunities.

Opportunities for shared services with 
Hepburn Shire Council and Golden Plains 
Shire Councils are progressing in relation 
to waste, recycling and building surveying 
services. The Central Highlands Group of 
Councils have established an incorporated 
association and secured resources from 
the Victorian Government to facilitate the
establishment of shared services in the 
region.

Seek Funding for New, Upgraded and 
Renewed Community Facilities (2017-2021) - 
Year 2 Progress

In Progress Applications for funding under the 
Country Football Netball Program were 
submitted and were successful for the 
Ballan Recreation Reserve Netball Courts 
& Lighting Upgrade ($50,000) and Darley 
Parks Oval Lighting Upgrade Projects 
($50,000).

Applications for the Bacchus Marsh 
Racecourse & Recreation Reserve Stage 
1 A Pavilion, Gordon Recreation Reserve 
Netball Facilities and Bald Hill Activation 
Plan were successful.

Staff assisted the Darley Football Netball 
Club with a successful application for a 
Federal Government grant of $150,000 for 
a lighting project at Darley Park.
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MAJOR INITIATIVES

Major Initiatives Progress

Ballarat Rail Line Action Committee (BRAC) - The Ballarat Rail Line Action 
Committee (BRAC) was formed in late 2015 with a brief to advance investment in 
the Ballarat rail line following concerns over congestion, reliability and predictions 
of rapid growth in passenger numbers. The Committee is a united voice for priority 
projects. The operation of BRAC is funded largely by the City of Melton who 
provide secretarial services on behalf of the group.

100% complete.

Councillor Training - An increase in existing budgets is required to facilitate further 
training and mentoring for Councillors.

100% complete.

Youth Traineeship Revenue Unit - This proposal is to offer a Youth traineeship 
within the Revenue Unit to an eligible school leaver through one of the many 
Commonwealth employment subsidy schemes that currently exist. This initiative is 
consistent with the Council Plan action to advocate and support the development of 
programs and services to increase employment opportunities for young people in 
Moorabool Shire.

Still in development 
phase and will be 
completed in 2019/20 
financial year.

Additional Resources in Revenue Department - This initiative recommends the 
creation of a new Full Time Revenue Officer to assist with the day to day operations 
and current workload within the business unit.  Updated analysis suggests that 
currently the Revenue team has a shortfall of approximately 199 staffing hours per 
month based on current work volumes. This is primarily funded from savings from 
the net costs of current bi-annual revaluations and the processing of all valuation 
objections being transferred to the Valuer General.

100% complete.

Employment Subsidies for Eligible Job Seekers - Proposal that a budget be 
allocated to engage eligible jobseekers through leveraging Commonwealth 
employment subsidies in roles that would provide them with experience and 
training.  The roles would also add value to the respective service unit/s in which 
the people are engaged.

Still in development 
phase and will be 
completed in 2019/20 
financial year.

Statutory Disclosure and Compliance Software - Following an audit process 
undertaken in 2017 it was recognised by both our auditors and the Audit & Risk 
Committee that there were significant risks by a failure to ensure legislative 
compliance. This initiative is requesting funding to purchase cloud-based software 
which will alert MSC to any changes in legislation that require alteration of policy or 
practice.

100% complete.
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MAJOR INITIATIVES

Major Initiatives Progress

Property, Rating, Local Laws, Stat Planning, Building and Records System 
Replacement - This initiative is for the replacement of Lynx Property & Regulatory 
and Content+ Records Management System. This is initiative 2.02 of the ICT 
Strategy and was listed as a business-critical item. The amount for 2018/19 is the 
initial amount required to engage consulting assistance for tendering, evaluation 
and tender contract assistance.

100% complete.

Bacchus Marsh Racecourse Recreation Reserve - Increase of Maintenance Budget - 
This initiative proposes an increase to the sportsground maintenance budget within 
the Parks and Gardens Unit to undertake the required programmed and reactive 
maintenance of new sportsgrounds as part of the Bacchus Marsh Racecourse and 
Recreation Reserve development.

100% complete.

Small Town and Reserve Improvements - This initiative proposes a financial 
allocation to enable the improvement and amenity of existing small town entrances, 
open spaces, and reserves. Council has commenced a process of developing 
township improvement plans for small towns across the municipality. If Council 
adopts the key recommendations of the Parks Review, this project can be delivered 
within the existing Parks budget allocation.

100% complete.

Masons Lane Sportsground - Increase of Maintenance Budget - This initiative 
proposes a financial increase to the sportsground maintenance budget to 
undertake the seasonal covering of the cricket wicket pitch at Masons Lane No.2 
sportsground, which will add capacity to allow for greater sporting participation 
opportunities at a currently under-utilised sportsground during the winter season.

100% complete.

Parks and Gardens Unit Resource Increase - This initiative seeks to increase 
resources within the Parks and Gardens Unit to cope with significant growth in new 
subdivisions and reserves. These assets have progressively been handed over to 
Council’s Parks and Gardens Unit from developers and contractors. Additional funds 
will be required to manage the programmed and reactive maintenance of these new 
open space areas.

100% complete.

Local Area Traffic Management Study, Bacchus Marsh (Stage 2) - In 2017/18 
Council funded the development of a Local Area Traffic Management (LATM) study 
for an area in central Bacchus Marsh. This initiative seeks to build on that study by 
delivering a LATM for a further precinct within the township as a second stage to 
the project.

100% complete.
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SERVICES FUNDED IN THE 2018-19 BUDGET

Service Description

Net Cost / Actual 
Budget Variance 
$000

Governance This area, being Governance includes the Mayor, Councillors 
and Chief Executive Officer, General Managers and associated 
support which cannot be easily attributed to the direct service 
provision areas.

2,611
2,403
(208)

Public Relations and 
Marketing

Provide an open and accessible communication network that 
is accurate, accessible, user friendly, relevant and timely.

55
85
30

Personnel 
Management

To provide, develop and implement strategies, policies and 
procedures through the provision of human resource and 
industrial relations services, that minimise the risk to Council.

741
761
(20)

Risk Management To develop, build and identify effective management of 
Council’s exposure to all forms of risk and to foster safer work 
places and environments within the municipality.

518
484
(34)

Finance Financial management and accounting of Council’s finances, 
including property rating and valuation services, collection 
of revenue and internal support and advice to internal 
departments. These services will be delivered by increasing 
the financial knowledge base of the whole of Council through 
customer awareness, consistency and clearly defined 
processes.

(10,041)
(9,829)
212

Customer Service Manage service provisions to provide an open and accessible 
communication network that is accurate, accessible, user 
friendly, relevant and timely.

661
679
18

Document 
Management

Electronic document management of Council’s external 
correspondence, maintain an effective and efficient electronic 
document management system and maintain Council’s archive 
program.

470
398
(72)

Information 
Communication and 
Technology

To provide a range of services to the organisation that 
supports its development through the effective management 
and expansion of Council’s information systems and 
technology.

2,360
2,154
(206)

Fleet Management To provide fleet management services for Council’s passenger 
and light commercial vehicles, buses, trucks, and earthmoving 
and roadwork machinery.

(707)
(930)
(223)
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SERVICES FUNDED IN THE 2018-19 BUDGET

Service Description
Net Cost / Actual 
Budget Variance 
$000

Animal Management 
and Local Laws 
Compliance

Deliver and maintain a responsive and proactive animal 
management service throughout the Shire. Review, develop 
and implement local laws that promote peace and good order 
in Moorabool.

137
69
(68)

Building Maintenance This service prepares maintenance management programs for 
Council’s property assets. These include municipal buildings, 
pavilions and other community buildings.

1,541
1,185
(356)

Parks and Gardens Maintain Council’s parks and gardens assets and provide 
facilities for our residents for the future.  Enhance and 
upgrade the aesthetic appearance of Moorabool townships.

2,778
3,079
301

Road Safety This service is for the provision of street lighting and bus stop 
maintenance.

425
397
(28)

Asset Management This service undertakes the design and coordination of 
Council’s Capital Improvement Program.

1,323
1,503
180

Road and Off Road 
Maintenance

To undertake maintenance to Council’s road assets to ensure 
they are in a safe and serviceable condition for all users.
This includes sealed and unsealed roads, bridges, kerb and 
channel, drainage, footpaths and signage.

4,422
5,224
802

Geographical 
Information Services

Spatial maintenance of all land parcels. 44
11
(33)

Property Asset 
Management

To effectively manage Council land, property leases and 
licences as per the property register.

(185)
(130)
55

Public Toilets Cleaning and general maintenance of all public toilets. 200
200
0
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Context 2A: Built Environment
Context 2B: Natural Environment

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 2: 
MINIMISING ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

2018/19 RESULTS and ACHIEVEMENTS

Strategic Objective Projects Progress Comments

Develop Frameworks for Each Small Town 
and Action Plans to Address Components 
Identified in the Small Towns Strategy, 
Bacchus Marsh Urban Growth Framework, 
Ballan Structure Plan, Tree Strategy and 
Gateways Strategy (2017-2021) - Year 2 
Progress

In Progress Council has completed a Township 
Improvement Plan for Elaine. Council is 
putting together a delivery timetable for 
the Township Improvement Plans for other 
small towns and settlements.

Ballan Strategic Directions was presented 
to the March 2019 Ordinary Meeting of 
Council and was authorised to proceed to 
Panel. 

The Tree Strategy was adopted May 2018.

Council has reviewed the Destination 
Management Plan 2013 to 2018, a project 
outline for the next iteration of the 
Destination Management Plan and its
relationship with the Economic 
Development Strategy 2015 is currently 
being developed.
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SERVICES FUNDED IN THE 2018-19 BUDGET

Strategic Objective Projects Progress Comments

Implement the Gordon Infrastructure Plan 
(2017-2019) - Year 2 Progress

In Progress The Gordon Infrastructure Plan involves 
upgrading the Russell Street and Main 
Street intersection, bus stop relocation, car 
parking improvements, the development 
of high amenity/place making locations, 
drainage improvements, footpath 
connection improvements and landscape 
improvements between the Gordon Public 
Hall and Lyndhurst Street.

Tenders were advertised in November 
2018 and Council approved the contract 
award on 17 December 2018 to Butler 
Excavations.

Works commenced on site in early March 
2019 and were expected to be completed 
by the end of the 2018-2019 financial year. 
Minor delays due to adverse weather 
during May and minor scope changes will 
now see the completion of site works in 
early September  2019.

Implement the Gordon Structure Plan (2017-
2019) - Year 2 Progress

Completed The project has been removed from the 
Council Plan (refer updated Council Plan 
that was adopted on 13 July 2019).

Incorporate Flood Mapping into the Planning 
Scheme (2017-2021) - Year 2 Progress

In Progress A peer review of Melbourne Water’s 
modelling has now been completed.

Review Bushfire Management Overlays 
(BMO) (2017-2021) - Year 2 Progress

Completed The Department of Environment, Land, 
Water and Planning (DELWP) has 
undertaken mapping and finalised a 
planning scheme amendment to include 
the Bushfire Management Overlay. Council 
officers notified residents of the State 
Government driven amendment in October 
2017.
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SERVICES FUNDED IN THE 2018-19 BUDGET

Strategic Objective Projects Progress Comments

Review and implement a Bacchus Marsh 
Avenue of Honour Management Plan

In Progress A project control group has been 
established to review and update the 
existing draft of the Bacchus Marsh 
Avenue of Honour Management Plan. 
Council’s tree inspection contractor 
completed the assessment of the trees 
in the Avenue in March 2019, and the 
updated tree condition data will be used 
to further inform the plan. At this stage, it 
is anticipated that a draft will be ready for 
initial review in the first half of the 2019/20 
financial year.

Prepare and Revise a Rolling Cycle of 
Reserve Master Plans (2017-2021) - Year 2 
Progress

Completed The rolling cycle continued in 2018/19 
with the completion of the Greendale 
Reserve Master Plan. The Master Plan 
was presented to Council in March 2019 
for endorsement. Council has allocated 
funding in the 2019/20 budget to allow 
the Master Plan cycle to continue. Master 
plans for Maddingley Park and Darley Park 
will be undertaken in the 2019/20 year.

Complete Bald Hill Activation Plan Feasibility 
Study

In Progress A Consultant has been appointed and is 
currently undertaking background and 
economic assessments. A draft scoping 
report has been received and is being 
reviewed by staff. This will form the final 
Feasibility Study.

Finalise and Implement the Action Plan of 
the Moorabool Sustainable Environment 
Strategy (2017-2021) - Year 2 Progress

In Progress This is a multi-year project across the 
period 2017 to 2021.

Within 2018/19 the following identified 
actions have been undertaken:
•	 In principle support provided for the 

integrated water management strategic 
direction statements.

•	 Implementation of annual pest and 
animal control programs.

•	 Continued support of Landcare and 
community-based environment groups.

•	 Mapping of open space assets.
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SERVICES FUNDED IN THE 2018-19 BUDGET

Strategic Objective Projects Progress Comments

Complete a Trial and Undertake a Review of 
the Greenwaste Service

Completed A report was provided to the Ordinary 
Meeting of Council in August 2018, 
where Council resolved to permanently 
implement the non-compulsory kerbside 
greenwaste collection service within 
residential and low density residential 
zoned (urban) areas of the municipality.

Undertake an Audit of Closed Landfills Completed Audits of closed landfill sites have been 
completed.

Develop an Open Space Integrated Water 
Management Plan - Stage One

Completed The Open Space Integrated Water 
Management Plan is a strategic document 
that informs the policy, infrastructure and 
systems required to improve amenity and 
functionality of the open space areas in 
Moorabool and manage water resources 
equitably. The draft plan has been 
completed.

Develop and Implement a Policy on 
Allocation, Use and Trading of Water for 
Council Water Assets - Stage One

Completed A Draft Water Allocation, Use and Trading 
Policy has been developed, alongside 
the Open Space Integrated Water 
Management Strategy.
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MAJOR INITIATIVES

SERVICES FUNDED IN THE 2018-19 BUDGET

Major Initiatives Progress

Maddingley Waste Hub Investigation Study - Planning study required to determine 
and confirm a full set of appropriate uses within and adjoining the Maddingley 
Brown Coal (MBC) site and surrounding area. Zone controls and overlays supported 
by potentially supplementary odor/dust/noise modelling, to consolidate and 
leverage off the State significant MBC site.

50% complete. 
Project to be finalised 
in the 2019/20 
financial year.

Roadside Weed Control - Proposed increased funding of recurrent roadside weed 
control budget so that a program targeting blackberry can be implemented. 
Currently there is a significant roadside blackberry issue throughout parts of 
Moorabool including Gordon, Mt Egerton, Lal Lal and Barkstead. Unfortunately, due 
to limited available funds, Council programs have only been able to target Gorse, 
Serrated Tussock and rabbits.

100% complete.

Service Description

Net Cost / Actual 
Budget Variance 
$000

Waste Management This unit covers maintenance, collection and disposal of 
domestic waste and waste related products, litter and litter 
bins around the Shire and cleaning of roads and other public 
places. The unit is responsible for managing recycling, the 
transfer stations and related services.

3,653
3,957
304

Environmental 
Management

This service develops environmental policy, coordinates and 
implements environmental projects and works with other 
services to improve Council’s environmental performance.

68
192
124
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Context 3A: Land Use Planning
Context 3B: Investment and Employment

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 3: 
STIMULATING ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

2018/19 RESULTS and ACHIEVEMENTS

Strategic Objective Projects Progress Comments

Incorporate Strategic Documents into the 
Planning Scheme - Ballan Structure Plan 
(2017-2021) - Year 2 Progress

In Progress The Ballan Strategic Directions went to 
a panel hearing in May 2019. The panel 
report was received in July 2019. Council 
will be briefed on the panel report and 
a report will go to a Council meeting in 
October 2019.

Incorporate Strategic Documents into the 
Planning Scheme - Housing Strategy (2017-
2021) - Year 2 Progress

Completed Amendment C79 which implements the 
Bacchus Housing Strategy was approved 
by the Minister for Planning on 15 
November 2018.

Incorporate Strategic Documents into the 
Planning Scheme - West Moorabool Heritage 
Study (2017-2021) - Year 2 Progress

In Progress The Consultants have completed a review 
of West Moorabool Heritage Study 2a to 
ensure alignment with the current Planning 
Scheme. Any proposed changes to the 
West Moorabool Heritage Study 2a will 
need to be approved by the authors of the 
original Study.

Council staff are currently reviewing the 
list of recommendations and impacts on 
project timelines including the Planning 
Scheme Amendment .
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2018/19 RESULTS and ACHIEVEMENTS

Strategic Objective Projects Progress Comments

Develop a Program for Services and Utilities 
in Small Towns (2017-2021)

Deferred Based on the Small Town Strategy, a 
key common infrastructure plan will be 
developed.

Elaine completed for 2017/18.
Gordon is scheduled for 2018/19.

Finalise the Bulky Goods Investigation Completed The Bulky Goods Investigation Study 
has been updated to reflect the Bacchus 
Marsh Urban Growth Framework. 

It is proposed to exhibit this and include it 
in the Planning Scheme via the Planning 
Scheme Review Amendment.

Develop and Finalise the Bacchus Marsh 
Urban Growth Framework Plan in Partnership 
with the Victorian Planning Authority

Completed The Bacchus Marsh Urban Growth 
Framework (BMUGF) was adopted 
by Council on 19 September 2018. 
Amendment C81 which implements the 
BMUGF was approved by the Minister for 
Planning on 6 December 2018.

Develop a Long Term Strategy for the 
Bacchus Marsh Civic Precinct

Deferred A grant application was submitted to the 
Victorian Planning Authority (VPA) to assist 
in the implementation of this project. 
Council was unsuccessful in receiving 
grant funding. Council officers are 
exploring alternative funding sources.
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2018/19 RESULTS and ACHIEVEMENTS

Strategic Objective Projects Progress Comments

Implement the Action Plan of the Economic 
Development Strategy (2017-2021) - Year 2 
Progress

In Progress The implementation of the action 
plan associated with the Economic 
Development Strategy will continue 
throughout the 2018-2021 period as 
scheduled.

In 2018 the following occurred:
•	 Creation of Economic Development 

Taskforce.
•	 Moorabool Business Network Forums 

were held at Blackwood, Gordon and 
Bacchus Marsh with over 70 attendees.

•	 Five editions of Moorabool Shire 
Business e-newsletter to 3,000+ 
businesses.

In 2019 the following occurred:
•	 Seven editions of Moorabool Shire 

Business e- newsletter to 3,000+ 
business.

•	 Business Breakfast delivered with 100 
guests.

•	 50 points of engagement with 
businesses implemented.

•	 More than 200 businesses attended 
workshops, training and networking.

Scope and Develop a Plan for the Bacchus 
Marsh Town Centre Revitalisation

Deferred A grant application was submitted to the 
Victorian Planning Authority (VPA) to assist 
in the implementation of this project. 
Council was unsuccessful in receiving 
grant funding. Council officers are 
exploring alternative funding sources.

Facilitate the Parwan Employment Precinct 
Planning and Marketing (2017-2021) - Year 2 
Progress

In Progress Council was successful in obtaining 
funding from the Victorian Planning 
Authority under Streamlining for Growth. 

The Victorian Planning Authority has 
commenced planning for this precinct.

This funding will assist with final 
background studies and further work on a 
Precinct Structure Plan.

Council Officers are undertaking 
investigations of stakeholder engagement 
of existing and potential businesses in the 
PEP with the aim to facilitate economic 
investment, expansion of current 
businesses and to inform future planning 
studies. A briefing will be provided to 
Council by November 2019.
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2018/19 RESULTS and ACHIEVEMENTS

Strategic Objective Projects Progress Comments

Refer Infrastructure Actions from the 
Bacchus Marsh Integrated Transport Strategy 
to the Long Term Capital Program (2017-
2021) - Year 2 Progress

Completed The infrastructure actions from the 
Bacchus Marsh Integrated Transport 
Strategy have been included in Council’s 
Long Term Capital Improvement Program 
for consideration, along with other priority 
projects, as part of each annual budget 
process. Currently working with Regional 
Roads Victoria on scoping further capacity 
improvement projects along Gisborne 
Road and Grant Street. Council is also part 
of the Steering Committee for the Eastern 
Link Road planning study that is currently 
in progress.

Review and Implement the Action Plan from 
the Destination Management Plan (Tourism) 
Review - Year 2 Progress

In Progress The Draft Destination Management Plan 
was reviewed in July 2018 to assess 
alignment with current industry trends, 
Council and State Government policies and 
strategies and completion of tasks.

Council Officers have completed a review 
of the Destination Management Plan to 
ensure alignment with key Council and 
State Government policies.

Advocate for Improved Ballarat Rail Line and 
Integrated Public Transport Outcomes (2017-
2021) - Year 2 Progress

Completed Advocacy continues to be made to the 
State Government on Ballarat Rail Line 
Action Committee issues. Significant 
investment has been approved in  the 
State Government Budget.



53Part   3

MAJOR INITIATIVES

Major Initiatives Progress

Windfarm Officer – Appointment of an additional planning officer for three days 
a week to manage the conditional requirements of the three windfarms located 
within the Shire. It is anticipated that the position may be required to become 
full time in the future as only one windfarm (Yaloak) has been constructed, with 
turbines now operating in the testing phase.

100% complete.

Municipal Building Surveyor – Increased the current budgeted amount for the 
contracted Municipal Building Surveyor.  The position is a legislated position that 
currently does not have a recurrent budget going forward. It is anticipated that this 
will be cost neutral due to increasing fees for building notices and orders.

100% complete.

Building Inspector - Appointment of a full-time permanent building inspector to 
ensure Council complies with its legal obligations under the Building Act.  Council’s 
current service is provided by a contract Municipal Building Surveyor who works 
half a day each week.  Council identified a gap in the service through a basic review 
undertaken in 2012.  This review identified an issue with outstanding building 
notices and orders. The funding of this position will enable Council to undertake an 
expected 120 Essential Service Inspections that are currently not undertaken. This 
is anticipated to be cost neutral due to increases in building lodgement fees.

100% complete.

Senior Infrastructure Planning Engineer - This initiative will assist the Engineering 
Services team deliver high quality outcomes including increased management of 
strategic infrastructure projects (e.g. windfarms, major developments including 
Underbank, Eastern Link Planning Study). This position will also support key 
strategic projects resulting from Moorabool 2041 and Urban Growth Framework 
including Parwan Employment Precinct and Merrimu. To be partially funded through 
anticipated increases in Subdivision fees.

100% complete.

Bacchus Marsh Aerodrome - Updated Masterplan - Council requires funds to deal 
with the finalisation of the Master Plan, along with legal operational management 
issues.

10% complete. Project 
to be completed in the 
2019/20 financial year.

Moorabool 2041 Amendments - Recurrent funding bid for next 3 years to prepare 
and finalise amendments relating to Moorabool 2041. After spending the last 3-5 
years preparing and adopting strategies a range of amendments now will need 
to be finalised and implemented. Key amendments include: Parwan PSP, West 
Moorabool Heritage, MBC/ South Maddingley C85 Amendment, Structure Plans for 
Small Towns e.g., Blackwood and Bungaree.

100% complete.

Bald Hill Feasibility Study - Funding for the development of a feasibility study 
for Bald Hill with the aim to identify actions for increased participation in fitness 
activities, economic benefits and environmental values. In March 2018 Council 
approved the Bald Hill Activation Plan Scoping Report that identified the potential 
for increased use of the reserve that would promote an increased number of local 
residents becoming more active as well as potential economic benefits.

50% complete. 
Project to be 
completed in the 
2019/20 financial year.
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MAJOR INITIATIVES

Major Initiatives Progress

Open Space Framework - Development of an Open Space Framework to ensure 
better delivery of open space as part of Precinct Structure Planning across all 
settlements in Moorabool and will assist in the development of the Open Space 
Strategy in 2020/21. The need for improved open space planning has been 
identified in the Bacchus Marsh Urban Growth Framework and Ballan Strategic 
Directions.

10% complete. Project 
to be completed in the 
2019/20 financial year.

Heritage Planning Advice - Funding for expert advice relating to potential impacts on 
historical assets listed under State legislation or the Moorabool Planning Scheme. 
Currently there is no recurrent budget for the assessment of applications that may 
impact upon historic features listed under either State Government legislation or 
the Moorabool Planning Scheme. While staff have the capacity and knowledge 
to provide advice in a majority of applications, it is a legislative requirement to 
provide professional heritage advice and the risks of providing incorrect advice are 
significant.

100% complete.

Update of profile.id and forecast.id - To fund updates to Council’s profile.id and 
forecast.id online demographic products to take account of Census 2016 data.

100% complete.

Community Infrastructure Funding - Scoping Study - Development Contributions 
Planning (DCP) and levies for existing urban areas - Determining a mechanism to 
collect money from infill development to fund community facilities in existing urban 
areas. High priority with Council resolution to address DCP opportunities in existing 
urban areas.

50% complete. 
Project to be 
completed in the 
2019/20 financial year.

Economic Development Officer - Increase to Full Time - Additional resources 
required to help deliver the Economic Development Strategy, the Destination 
Management Plan, the Retail Strategy and other associated tasks such as 
Community Events.

100% complete.

Victorian Motor Sports Hub at Fiskville - Since the closure of the facility in 2015, the 
Shire has been working with the Victorian Government to stimulate local economic 
activity including through the partial re-establishment of CFA training activities. 
While the delivery of local economic activity is a broader policy matter for the 
Shire and the Victorian Government, the future use or development of the land at 
Fiskville provides an opportunity to stimulate local economic throughput and jobs. 
Among many things the use of the site for a motor sports hub has been proposed. 
The preliminary work undertaken by Ballarat City Council supports the case as 
well. However, to progress the project further a business case is required to inform 
an investment decision. The outcome of the preliminary business case will be to 
demonstrate whether a motor sports hub (or an alternative solution) represents the 
best strategic approach.

10% complete. Project 
to be completed in the 
2019/20 financial year.
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SERVICES FUNDED IN THE 2018-19 BUDGET

Service Description

Net Cost / Actual 
Budget Variance 
$000

Building Services Ensure all building permits lodged by private building 
surveyors are registered in accordance with legislation, and all 
building department activities are undertaken within legislative 
timelines.

17
33
16

Statutory Planning Deliver statutory planning functions of Council to ensure 
responsible land use and development in Moorabool.

692
494
(198)

Strategic Land Use 
Planning

Delivery of key strategic policies and projects that assist in the 
long-term development of the Shire.

1,029
1,421
392

Infrastructure 
Subdivision 
Development

Provide infrastructure support services for subdivisions and 
developments, whilst developing guidelines for Council to 
improve and provide consistency in the planning and delivery 
of subdivision development.

(469)
(300)
169

Economic 
Development and 
Tourism

The economic development service assists the organisation 
to facilitate an environment that is conducive to a sustainable 
and growing local business sector and provides opportunities 
for local residents to improve their skill levels and access 
employment. It also aims to develop strategies to bring 
tourists into Moorabool Shire.

450
499
49
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Context 4A: Health and Wellbeing
Context 4B: Community Connectedness and Capacity

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 4: 
IMPROVING SOCIAL OUTCOMES

2018/19 RESULTS and ACHIEVEMENTS

Strategic Objective Projects Progress Comments

Prepare and Implement an 
Advocacy and Partnership 
Plan to Attract Investment 
in Government and Non-
Government Services in the 
Municipality (2017-2021) - Year 
2 Progress

In Progress Council endorsed advocacy material at the Ordinary Meeting 
of Council on 6 June 2018. The material forms a key part of 
Council’s advocacy strategy. The aim of the advocacy efforts 
is to attract investment in Government and non-Government 
services in the municipality. The purpose of the advocacy is 
to ensure that the Shire’s current and future residents have 
access to a range of community services needed to maximise 
their health, safety and well-being. The advocacy is being 
undertaken over the life of the Council Plan 2017-2021.

Discussions are being held with representatives of the 
Grampians Sports Central in relation to a worker being based at 
Council to provide club development programs and assist with 
the implementation of initiatives in the Council’s Health & Well-
being Plan to increase physical activity.

Group Training organisations and the Highlands Local Learning 
and Employment Network have worked with Council staff 
on the provision of work experience and pre-employment 
programs for jobseekers in Moorabool.

Discussions are also being held with Jesuit Social Services 
about the delivery of Men’s Behavioural Changes program.

Officers supported the Moorabool Drug Action Group in 
submitting a successful application to the Australian Drug 
Foundation for registration as a Local Drug Action Team and 
$10,000 in funding to prepare a community action plan.

Council is participating in the development of a Strategic Plan 
being prepared by Djerriwarrh Health Services. A key part of 
the strategic planning process will involve the identification of 
service gaps and proposals on how the gaps can and will be 
addressed.

This action is being implemented over the life of the Council 
Plan.
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2018/19 RESULTS and ACHIEVEMENTS

Strategic Objective Projects Progress Comments

Facilitate and Support Existing and Emerging 
Arts and Cultural Development Groups and 
Activities Across the Municipality (2017-
2021) - Year 2 Progress

In Progress The Bacchus Marsh Arts Council is 
utilising workshop space at the Darley 
Civic & Community Hub. Ongoing support 
continues to be provided to the Arts 
Council in building the capacity of its 
group and examining opportunities for joint 
projects and funding. Support is being 
provided to the Arts Council to exhibit art 
work in the common areas /foyers of the 
building it is sharing with other groups at 
the Darley Civic & Community Hub.
In August 2018, the Council allocated 
$7,600 to 3 Arts and Cultural projects: 
1)	‘WinterKnits’ Group Ballan; 
2)	Gordon Community Fair and; 
3)	Bacchus Marsh & Melton District 

Community Theatre Incorporated.

The Council’s Youth Strategy outlines the 
development of a new arts program for 
young people with a focus on improved 
mental health of young people by using 
arts as a medium.

Implement the Reserve Management 
Framework (2017-2021) - Year 2 Progress

In Progress The Council Fees and Charges have been 
issued in accordance with the Recreation 
Reserve User Fees and Charges Policy 
and 2019-20 Budget. User agreements 
have been completed for summer 
season tenants (Oct - March). Annual 
Management Agreements (AMAs) have 
also been put in place and operational 
funding provided to committees as per the
Recreation Reserve Funding Policy.

Plan and Construct Stage 1 of the Bacchus 
Marsh Racecourse Recreation Reserve 
(2017-2019) - Year 2 Progress

Completed Stage 1 of the project includes the 
construction of pony club facilities, a BMX 
track, sports fields and a pavilion at the 
Bacchus Marsh Racecourse Recreation 
Reserve site to be constructed over three 
years. 

Works completed to date:
•	Bulk earthworks
•	Equestrian cross country
•	Multipurpose sports oval (soccer, cricket 

and football).
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2018/19 RESULTS and ACHIEVEMENTS

Strategic Objective Projects Progress Comments

Develop a Plan to Improve, 
Update and Beautify our 
Neighbourhood, Passive, 
Recreation and Other Open 
Spaces (2017-2019) - Year 2 
Progress

In Progress A Community Survey has been completed and closed 
7 December 2018. Presentations were made to internal 
departments, including the Youth Action Group, Aged & 
Disability Services and Maternal and Child Health Nurses.

Draft open space maps have been developed and are currently 
being reviewed by relevant Council Departments for their 
accuracy.

It is anticipated that the final document will completed for 
adoption by Council in October 2019.

Prepare a Directions Paper 
to Deliver Aged Services in 
a Consumer Directed Care 
Environment

Completed The Commonwealth is currently consulting with the aged 
care sector as to what the funding reforms will look like post 
2020. In the interim, a directions paper was prepared and has 
informed Council on delivery of aged services.

Advocate and Support the 
Development of Programs 
and Services to Increase 
Employment Opportunities for 
Young People (2017-2019) - 
Year 2 Progress

Completed Advocacy material has been prepared and forms part of 
the Council’s Advocacy Strategy. The aim of the project is 
to increase employment opportunities for young people in 
Moorabool. 

The objectives are:
• Increase investment in educational opportunities to improve 

the educational attainment levels of young people;
• Increase investment in programs and services to support 

young people experiencing multiple barriers to employment; 
and

• Develop the capacity and diversity of the Moorabool 
workforce by developing the skill set of the young people of 
Moorabool.

Council allocated funds in its 2018/2019 budget to provide 
opportunities for jobseekers including young people to 
be employed through traineeships and structured work 
experience programs at Council. This builds on Council’s 
existing commitment to engaging apprentices at Council 
depots. Ballarat Group Training and MEGT group have been 
appointed to a panel to engage participants on traineeships 
and apprenticeships in Council.

A Lifeguard Scholarship program has been introduced to assist 
local young people undertake Lifeguard qualifications and gain 
employment at Council ‘s outdoor pools.

Council’s Youth Strategy 2018-2021 outlines actions relating to 
increasing employment opportunities for young people aged 
under 25 years. The Youth Services team has been successful 
in obtaining a grant to support the employment of an additional 
youth worker to support young people who have or are at risk 
of disengaging from education or employment.

The advocacy is being undertaken over the life of the Council 
Plan 2017-2021.
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2018/19 RESULTS and ACHIEVEMENTS

Strategic Objective Projects Progress Comments

Revise and Adopt the Youth 
Strategy

Completed The Youth Services team completed the Community 
Engagement Plan and consultation with the community 
between December 2017- February 2018. The Draft 
Strategy was presented to the Ordinary Meeting of Council 
in August 2018.

Public consultation closed on 31 August 2018, with the final 
strategy presented and endorsed by Council at its Ordinary 
Meeting in October 2018.

Revise and Adopt the Library 
Strategic Plan Inclusive of 
Undertaking a Feasibility Study 
to Inform the Future Provision 
of Library Services in Ballan

In Progress A Draft Strategy and Action Plan has been prepared. The 
Draft Library Strategy and Feasibility Study are related to the 
preparation of a master plan for the Ballan Offices. This will 
come back to Council at a later date.

Develop and Deliver a 
Community Group Capacity 
Building and Sustainability 
Program

In Progress Council has allocated funding to undertake the Community 
Capacity Building Project in the 2019/20 financial year.

Project scoping has commenced. The focus will be on 
improving the capacity of Council’s Section 86 committees 
through the development of a Committee Resource Manual.

Following completion of the manual and a report to Council, 
a series of information workshops will be held with the 
committees.

Deliver Community Emergency 
Management Education 
Program (2017-2021) - Year 2 
Progress

Completed The Blackwood Community Emergency Planning Group held 
a Scenario Planning Community Session on 16 November 
2017 based on a fire scenario. Representatives from Scotsburn 
were invited to give an update on their preparation, response 
and recovery since the 2015 fires. The Scotsburn Community 
Recovery Committee and Leadership Program progressed with 
the 2nd Anniversary Event held on the 15 December 2017 and 
the Leadership Program focused on the fire game project.
The Scotsburn Recovery Book was launched at the 
Scotsburn Hall on 30 May 2018 and the Scotsburn Fire 
Game was launched at the Scotsburn Primary School on 
15 June 2018. The Research Project into the high emotions 
during an emergency event was held at the Scotsburn Hall 
in November 2018. The official opening of the Clarendon 
Community Centre was held on 16 March 2019. Screening of 
“Forged from the Fire” was held on 5 April 2019 with support 
from local Landcare groups and with the VCC Emergency 
Ministries providing psychosocial support. Safer Together 
Stage engagement is occurring through the State Government 
engagement platform for all communities in the Grampians 
Region. DELWP has provided ongoing education and advice 
on all burns during spring and autumn. There has been a social 
media campaign on home safety, insurance campaigns and 
house fire incidents. There has been ongoing engagement 
with the Grampians Region for Strategic Bushfire Management 
Planning with the Stage 3 Engagement Program commencing.
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MAJOR INITIATIVES

Major Initiatives Progress

Ballan Men’s Shed - The Shed provides an opportunity for men to build new skills 
or practice old ones in a positive and non-competitive environment. It also enables 
men to develop new friendships while working on either individual projects or in a 
team effort making materials to help community organisations. Previously funded 
by external grant programs, it will require funding from Council in 2018/19.

100% complete.

Secure Cash Pick Up and Deposit - Facilitating the safe and secure pick up of cash 
from Council Offices. A cash handling audit and risk assessment undertaken in 2017 
identified the high risk involved with staff taking large amounts of cash to the bank on 
a daily basis. The audit and risk assessment strongly recommended that options be 
explored for safe and secure pick up and deposit by an external security company.

100% complete.

Health Promotion Officer - Increase the hours of the Health Promotion Officer 
to help lead the integration of health promotion principles on an organisation and 
municipal wide basis. The expanded role will lead the delivery of the Health and 
Wellbeing Plan across Council and the communities of Moorabool.

100% complete.

ICT For Studio 22 (Youth Space) - Council made a resolution to allocate Studio 22 as 
a Youth Space. Whilst existing resources have been allocated to opening the space, 
Studio 22 is without the technology of internet access (Wi-Fi) and computer access 
for young people. Wi-Fi access and computers are an essential tool in this day and 
age when working with young people. This initiative is to fund this technology as a 
one-off cost and then an ongoing service cost.

100% complete.

Youth Services Casual Staff - The Moorabool Youth Strategy recommended Council 
investigate the establishment of a casual youth services workforce that would 
enable youth services to meet peaks in demand and to strengthen an increasingly 
flexible delivery system. A large component of the Youth Service work is the 
delivery of youth events outside of normal business hours, this requires additional 
staff to meet required ratios of staff to young people and ensure safety and positive 
engagement with young people.

100% complete.

Domestic Waste Water Management Plan Review - The Domestic Waste Water 
Management Plan needs reviewing. The audit has already been undertaken and a 
review must now occur to ensure Council has an acceptable plan in place and one 
that the Water Authorities support.

80% complete. 
Project to be 
completed in the 
2019/20 financial year.

Food Safety Projects - Additional resources to fund a number of initiatives to 
better protect community health. This would include healthy food options which 
is an action under the Health and Wellbeing Plan; a water sampling program of 
all registered premises on non-reticulated water; and increased food proprietor 
surveillance to ensure compliance with legislation.

100% complete.

Sewer Upgrade Gordon Recreation Reserve - This initiative would help fund 
the upgrade of the sewer system at Gordon Recreation Reserve. Council’s 
Environmental Health Officers received a complaint that effluent from the existing 
facility was leaving the site through natural drainage lines and impacting on an 
adjoining land owner. Rectification works will be required.

100% complete.

Community Grants Programs - This initiative is to increase the community grants 
funding over a three-year period, as per Councillor discussion in the October 2017 
Ordinary Meeting of Council.

100% complete.
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SERVICES FUNDED IN THE 2018-19 BUDGET

Service Description

Net Cost / Actual 
Budget Variance 
$000

Aged and Disability 
Services

This service provides home and community care, assessment 
and care management, volunteer coordination, and senior 
citizen clubs.

334
316
(18)

Planned Activity 
Groups

To provide social interactions for socially isolated residents in 
Moorabool Shire.

43
94
51

Meals on Wheels To assist residents at nutritional risk with meals that have 
been designed by a dietitian.

(45)
(33)
12

Personal Care To provide support and personal hygiene to residents that are 
unable to physically complete their own personal care.

16
(14)
(30)

Aged and Disability 
Brokerage

To provide brokerage services to residents that have been 
allocated aged care packages with physical and social support.

(17)
(31)
(14)

Respite To provide support to carers of residents with high care 
needs.

22
(21)
(43)

Property Maintenance Property and home maintenance for residents of Moorabool 
includes mowing, washers for taps, painting, ramps, rails and 
bathroom renovations.

(6)
(3)
3

Community 
Development

Community Development is concerned with empowering 
and enabling the communities of Moorabool to be innovative, 
engaged, skilled and help them work together to improve 
their well-being through opportunities for partnerships, better 
relationships with Council and increased participation in 
community life.

893
1,114
221

Emergency 
Management

Emergency Management works to ensure Moorabool has 
plans in place to engage with the community and assist with 
preparing resilient communities that can prepare and recover 
from emergencies.

(157)
88
245

Recreation 
Development

Provide leadership, strengthen networks and partnerships to 
plan, develop and deliver high quality recreation participation 
and engagement opportunities that enhance health and 
wellbeing. Includes Leisure and Pool Facilities.

444
418
(26)
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SERVICES FUNDED IN THE 2018-19 BUDGET

Service Description

Net Cost / Actual 
Budget Variance 
$000

Library Services Provision of fixed and rural mobile library services to key points 
throughout the Moorabool area.

440
451
11

Youth Services Enable youth within Moorabool to have a community voice and 
establish programs and activities that enhance and reward them as 
people.

194
309
115

Environmental 
Health

Legislative Responsibilities (Food Act 1984 (Food Safety), Health Act 
1958, Tobacco Act 1987, Residential Tenancies Act 1997 and Local 
Government Act 1989). Assessments and installations of septic tanks 
carried out in accordance with the Environmental Protection Act and 
the Septic Code of Practice 2003. Ensure children in the Australian 
Childhood Immunisation Register target group are fully immunised.

273
247
(26)

Early Years 
Services

Ensure that services and infrastructure provided to children and 
families are well planned and respond in a way that meets the needs 
of the local community.  Early Years Services delivers a small number 
of high quality family and children’s programs and services that 
support, promote and strengthen family health and wellbeing.

264
276
12

Maternal & Child 
Health

Provision of a universal service to families with children aged 0-6 
years directed at improving outcomes by the prevention, early 
detection, and intervention of physical, emotional or social factors 
known to place children at risk of not reaching their potential.

463
584
121

Best Start A State Government funded early intervention program aimed at 
reducing disadvantage and enhancing the outcomes of children 0-8 
yrs. Best Start supports communities, parents, families and service 
providers to improve local early years services and support.

(10)
0
10

Education and 
Care Services

Occasional Care Service provides high quality care for children aged 
from six months to six years with the opportunity to explore a wide 
range of experiences, building upon their skills, interests and abilities 
through play in a calm and happy environment. Supported Playgroups 
provide support and connection to disadvantaged families through 
groups and in home support. Kindergarten liaison and support which 
includes the management of Council owned early years facilities, 
including kindergarten central enrolment for 4-year-old kindergarten 
programs and support and management of kindergarten cluster 
managers/kindergarten committees of management.

77
112
35

Fire Prevention Ensure safety around the Moorabool Shire through fire prevention 
inspections of vacant land in urban and rural living areas.

253
313
60

School Crossings Provide school crossing supervisors or staff at 13 locations in Ballan 
and Bacchus Marsh within designated hours.

150
152
2
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Context: 5.1 Good governance through open and transparent processes and strong accountability 
to the community.

Carry over actions from the previous Council Plan (2013-2017):

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 5: 
REPRESENTATION AND LEADERSHIP 
OF OUR COMMUNITY 

2018/19 RESULTS and ACHIEVEMENTS

Strategic Objective Projects Progress Comments

Review and Implement the After 
Hours Response System as 
approved by Council

In Progress Possible provider has presented to relevant staff. Staff will 
now investigate current requirements and costs.
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Context: 7.2 Enhance and protect the long term integrity and biodiversity of the natural 
environment.

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 7: 
ENHANCED INFRASTRUCTURE AND 
NATURAL BUILT ENVIRONMENT 

2018/19 RESULTS and ACHIEVEMENTS

Strategic Objective Projects Progress Comments

Investigate Frameworks for 
Cost Recovery in Terms of 
Ongoing Monitoring of Domestic 
Wastewater Management Plan

Completed The costing model has been determined, however is 
dependent on the outcome of the Domestic Waste Water 
Review which will be presented to Council at a briefing 
session in August. A decision will be made on whether 
to implement cost recovery for the monitoring of the 
Domestic Wastewater Plan.
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GOVERNANCE, MANAGEMENT
AND OTHER INFORMATION

Part  4
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GOVERNANCE

Residents and ratepayers 
elect Councillors to advocate 
for the community’s needs 
and aspirations. Council’s 
authority is exercised as a 
whole rather than through 
individual Councillors.

The Moorabool Shire Council 
consists of seven Councillors 
who are democratically elected 
by the constituents of Moorabool 
Shire in accordance with the Local 
Government Act 1989 (the Act).

The role of Council is to 
provide leadership for the good 
governance of the Moorabool 
Shire that includes:

•	 Acting as a representative 
government by taking into 
account the diverse needs of 
the local community in decision 
making;

•	 Providing leadership by 
establishing strategic 
objectives and monitoring their 
achievement;

•	 Maintaining the viability of 
Council by ensuring that 
resources are managed in a 
responsible and accountable 
manner;

•	 Advocating the interests of 
the local community to other 
communities and governments;

•	 Acting as a responsible partner 
in government by taking into 
account the needs of other 
communities; and

•	 Fostering community cohesion 
and encouraging active 
participation in civic life.

The Chief Executive Officer is 
responsible for:

•	 Establishing and maintaining 
an appropriate organisational 
structure for Council;

•	 Ensuring that the decisions 
of Council are implemented 
without undue delay;

•	 The day to day management 
of Council’s operations in 
accordance with the Council 
Plan; and 

•	 Providing timely advice to 
Council.
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MEETINGS OF COUNCIL

Council conducts open 
public meetings on 
the first Wednesday 
of every month except 
January and makes 
decisions on the items 
listed in the Council 
Meeting Agenda. 
Members of the 
community are welcome 
to attend these 
meetings and observe 
from the gallery.  

Council meetings also 
provide the opportunity 
for community members 
to submit a question 
to Council and make a 
submission or speak to 
an item on the Agenda. 

Where required, Special 
Meetings of Council 
may be held to make 
decisions on important 
issues in-between 
times.

For the 2018-19 year 
Council held the 
following meetings:

• 11 Ordinary Council 
Meetings

• 5 Special Council 
Meetings

The table beside depicts 
each Councillor as 
present or as an apology 
for each meeting in the 
2017-18 year.

Ordinary Meetings of Council Councillor 
Attendance 2018-19

Special Meetings of Council Councillor 
Attendance 2018-19

Cr. 
David 
Edwards

Cr. 
Tonia 
Dudzik

Cr. 
Tom 
Sullivan

Cr. 
Pat 
Toohey

Cr. 
Paul 
Tatchell

Cr. 
Jarrod 
Bingham

Cr. 
John 
Keogh

4-Jul-18 1 1 1 apology 1 1 1

1-Aug-18 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

5-Sep-18 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

3-Oct-18 apology 1 1 1 1 1 1

7-Nov-18 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

5-Dec-18 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

6-Feb-19 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

6-Mar-19 apology 1 1 1 1 1 1

3-Apr-19 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

1-May-19 1 1 1 apology 1 1 1

5-Jun-19 apology 1 1 1 1 1 1

Number of 
Meetings 8 11 11 9 11 11 11

Cr. 
David 
Edwards

Cr. 
Tonia 
Dudzik

Cr. 
Tom 
Sullivan

Cr. 
Pat 
Toohey

Cr. 
Paul 
Tatchell

Cr. 
Jarrod 
Bingham

Cr. 
John 
Keogh

19-Sep-18 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

26-Nov-18 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

17-Dec-18 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

15-May-19 apology 1 apology apology 1 1 1

26-Jun-19 1 1 1 apology 1 1 1

Number of 
Meetings

4 5 4 3 5 5 5

Total # 
of Council 
meetings

12 16 15 12 16 16 16

* Apology for non attendance due to leave, other representative duties or work commitments
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SPECIAL 
DELEGATED 
COMMITTEES

The following Special Committees 
have been established by Council 
under section 86 of the Local 
Government Act 1989.

•	 Bacchus Marsh Public Hall 
Committee of Management

•	 Bacchus Marsh Racecourse and 
Recreation Reserve Committee 
of Management

•	 Blacksmith’s Cottage and 
Forge Advisory Committee of 
Management

•	 Bungaree Public Hall Committee 
of Management

•	 Development Assessment 
Committee

•	 Dunnstown Recreation Reserve 
Committee of Management

•	 Elaine Recreation Reserve 
Committee of Management

•	 Gordon Public Hall Committee 
of Management

•	 Greendale Recreation Reserves 
Committee of Management

•	 Lal Lal Soldiers’ Memorial Hall 
Committee of Management

•	 Maddingley Park Committee of 
Management

•	 Millbrook Community Centre

•	 Moorabool Growth 
Management Committee

•	 Navigators Community Centre

•	 Wallace Recreation Reserve

•	 Wallace Public Hall

Pursuant to the provisions 
of section 86 of the Local 
Government Act 1989, Council 
may establish one or more special 
committees consisting of:

• Councillors

• Council staff

• Other persons

• Any combination of the above

Section 86 special delegated 
committees are established to 
assist Council with executing 
specific functions or duties. By 
instrument of delegation, Council 
may delegate to the committees 
such functions and powers of the 
Council that it deems appropriate, 
utilising provisions of the Local 
Government Act 1989.  The 
Council cannot delegate certain 
powers as specifically indicated in 
section 86(4) of the Act.

ADVISORY 
COMMITTEES

In addition to the Special 
Committees of Council with 
delegated authority established 
under the Local Government Act 
1989 (section 86), Council has 
the ability to create Advisory 
Committees by resolution under 
the provisions  of the Act.

The following committees 
currently have no specific 
delegated powers to act on 
behalf of Council or commit 
Council to any expenditure unless 
resolved explicitly by Council 
following recommendation from 
the Committee. Their function 
provides substantial expertise to 
the Council’s planning by way of 
advisory recommendations.

The following Advisory 
Committees have been 
established by Council.

•	 Audit and Risk Advisory 
Committee

•	 Bacchus Marsh District Trails 
Advisory Committee

•	 Bacchus Marsh Leisure 
Centre Joint Use Management 
Agreement Advisory Committee

	
•	 Economic Development 

Taskforce Advisory Committee

•	 Heritage Advisory Committee

•	 Lal Lal Falls Reserve Advisory 
Committee of Management

•	 Moorabool Environment 
and Sustainability Advisory 
Committee

•	 Moorabool Health and 
Wellbeing Advisory Committee

•	 Positive Ageing Advisory 
Committee
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COUNCILLOR 
CODE OF 
CONDUCT

CONFLICT OF 
INTEREST

COUNCILLOR 
ALLOWANCES

In accordance with Section 74 of 
the Local Government Act 1989, 
Councillors are entitled to receive an 
allowance whilst performing their 
duty as a Councillor.   The Mayor 
is also entitled to receive a higher 
allowance.

The State Government sets the 
upper and lower limits for all 
allowances paid to Councillors 
and Mayors.  Councils are divided 
into three categories based on the 
income and population of each 
Council.  In this instance Moorabool 
Shire Council is recognised as a 
category two Council.

For the period 1 July 2018 to 1 
December 2018, the Councillor 
annual allowance for a category 
two (2) Council (as defined by 
the Local Government Act 1989) 
was fixed at $24,730 per annum 
and the allowance for the Mayor 
was $76,521 per annum, in 
addition to the Councillor and 
Mayoral allowance the equivalent 
of the superannuation guarantee 
contribution (SGC) (currently 9.5%).

For the period 1 December 
2018 to 30 November 2019, the 
Councillor annual allowance for 
a category two (2) Council (as 
defined by the Local Government 
Act 1989) was fixed at $25,225 per 
annum and the allowance for the 
Mayor was $78,051 per annum, 
in addition to the Councillor and 
Mayoral allowance the equivalent 
of the superannuation guarantee 
contribution (SGC) (currently 9.5%).

Councillors are elected by the 
residents and ratepayers to 
act in the best interests of the 
community.  This is a position of 
trust that requires Councillors to 
act in the public interest.   When a 
Council delegates its powers to a 
Council officer or a committee, the 
committee or officer also needs to 
act in the public interest.

A conflict of interest occurs when 
a personal or private interest might 
compromise the ability to act in 
the public interest.  A conflict of 
interest exists even if no improper 
act results from it. Council has 
a comprehensive procedure 
in place to accommodate the 
disclosure of a conflict of interest. 
Declaration of a conflict of interest 
is a standard agenda item for all 
Council and Committee meetings.

While the procedures vary 
depending on the particular role 
and circumstances, in general they 
involve disclosing the relevant 
interests in a specific way and 
then stepping aside from the 
relevant decision making process 
or from the exercise of the public 
duty. A register is maintained 
to record all disclosed conflict 
of interest.  During 2018-19, 16 
conflicts of interest were declared 
at meetings of Council.

Moorabool Shire Councillors are 
bound by a Councillor Code of 
Conduct. The Code is designed to 
assist Councillors in maintaining 
the highest standards of conduct 
and behaviour as well as providing 
a means for dealing with conflicts 
which may occur.  The Code is 
also intended to assist the Mayor, 
Deputy Mayor and Councillors 
to discharge their public office 
appropriately.  The Code covers 
relationships between Councillors 
and staff, the use of Council 
resources and dispute resolution 
procedures.  The Councillor Code 
of Conduct can be viewed on 
Council’s website.
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COUNCILLOR 
EXPENSES

In accordance with Section 75 of 
the Local Government Act 1989, 
Council is required to reimburse a 
Councillor for expenses incurred 
whilst performing his or her 
duties as a Councillor.  Council 
is also required to adopt and 
maintain a policy in relation to the 
reimbursement of expenses for 
Councillors.   The policy provides 
guidance for the payment of 
reimbursement of expenses 
and the provision of resources, 
facilities and other support to the 
Mayor and Councillors to enable 
them to discharge their duties.  

The details of the expenses, 
including reimbursement of 
expenses for each Councillor and 
member of a Council Committee 
paid by the Council for the 2018-
19 year are set out in the following 
table.

TR Travel, CM Car Mileage, CC Child Care, IC Information and Communication expenses, T Training expenses.

NOTE:	 No expenses were paid by Council including reimbursements to members of council committees 
	 during the year.

Councillors TR  $ CM  $ CC  $ IC  $ T  $ Total  $

Cr. Edwards  -    -    -    306  -    306 

Cr. Toohey  -    -    -    1,459  893  2,352 

Cr. Sullivan  -    -    -    441  -    441 

Cr. Dudzik  -    -    -    358  -    358 

Cr. Tatchell  -    -    -    949  -    949 

Cr. Bingham  -    -    -    372  -    372 

Cr. Keogh  -    -    -    479  -    479 

 -    -    -    4,365  893  5,259 
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Council has implemented 
a number of statutory 
and better practice 
items to strengthen its 
management framework. 
Having strong governance 
and management 
frameworks leads to 
better decision making by 
Council. The Act requires 
Council to undertake an 
assessment against the 
prescribed governance and 
management checklist and 
include this in its report of 
operations.

Council’s governance and 
management checklist results 
are set out in the section 
below.  The following items have 
been highlighted as important 
components of the management 
framework.

MANAGEMENT
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AUDIT 
AND RISK 
ADVISORY 
COMMITTEE

INTERNAL 
AUDIT

EXTERNAL 
AUDIT

Council is externally audited by the 
Victorian Auditor-General. For the 
2018-19 year the annual external 
audit of Council’s Financial 
Statements and Performance 
Statement was conducted by 
the Victorian Auditor-General’s 
representative. The external 
auditors attend in February or May 
each year to present the audit plan 
to the Audit and Risk Advisory 
Committee and in September each 
year to present the independent 
audit report.  The external audit 
management letter and responses 
are also provided to the Audit 
Committee.

Council’s internal audit function 
provides independent and 
objective assurance that the 
appropriate processes and controls 
are in place across Council.

The Internal Auditor attends 
each Audit and Risk Committee 
meeting to report on the status 
of the Internal Audit 3 Year 
Plan, to provide an update on 
the implementation of audit 
recommendations and to 
present findings of completed 
reviews.  The responsible general 
manager and manager for each 
area reviewed are required to 
review recommendations for 
improvement and determine 
management action plans. All 
audit issues identified are risk 
rated.

Recommendations are assigned 
to the responsible manager and 
tracked in Council’s corporate 
reporting system.  Managers 
provide quarterly status updates 
that are reviewed by the Internal 
Auditor and reported to the 
Executive Management Group 
and the Audit and Risk Advisory 
Committee.

The Audit and Risk Advisory 
Committee’s role is to oversee 
and monitor the effectiveness 
of Council in carrying out its 
responsibilities for accountable 
financial management, good 
corporate governance, maintaining 
an effective system of internal 
control, risk management and 
fostering an ethical environment. 
The Committee consists of 2 
independent members, Mr. 
Michael Said (Chair) and Ms. 
Linda MacRae as well as two 
Councillors.  Independent 
members are appointed for a three 
year term.  Independent members 
may be appointed for more 
than one three year term.  The 
chair is elected from among the 
independent members.

The Committee meets five 
times a year. The Internal 
Auditor, Chief Executive Officer, 
General Managers and the Chief 
Finance Officer attend the Audit 
and Risk Advisory Committee 
meetings. Other management 
representatives attend as required 
to present reports.  

Resolutions from each Audit and 
Risk Advisory Committee meeting 
are subsequently reported to, and 
considered by Council.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Council’s Risk Management Strat-
egy was completed in 2019 with 
a primary focus being the identifi-
cation of Council’s key operational 
risks along with confirming current 
controls or establishing those 
required. An external risk frame-
work audit was completed and 
a number of recommendations 
were made. An action plan has 
been developed to address these 
priorities.

Risk Management Reports are 
provided to each Audit and Risk 
Committee meeting alternating 
between operational and strategic 
risk reporting.  Internally a Risk 
Management Steering Committee 
operates which includes a focus 
on a review of service unit risk 
registers.
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2018/2019 GOVERNANCE 
AND MANAGEMENT 
CHECKLIST

Requirement Assessment
Date implemented/
Effective date

Community engagement policy 
(policy outlining Council’s 
commitment to engaging with 
the community on matters of 
public interest)

Current policy in 
operation

YES 2/03/2016

Community engagement 
guidelines (guidelines to assist 
staff to determine when and how 
to engage with the community)

Current 
guidelines in 
operation

YES 2/03/2019

Strategic Resource Plan (plan 
under section 126 of the Act 
outlining the financial and non-
financial resources required for at 
least the next 4 financial years)

Plan adopted in 
accordance with 
section 126 of 
the Act 

YES 3/07/2019

Annual budget (plan under 
section 130 of the Act setting 
out the services to be provided 
and initiatives to be undertaken 
over the next 12 months and 
the funding and other resources 
required)

Budget adopted 
in accordance 
with section 130 
of the Act

YES 3/07/2019

Asset management plans 
(plans that set out the asset 
maintenance and renewal needs 
for key infrastructure asset 
classes for at least the next 10 
years)

Current plans in 
operation

YES Part A General 30/4/13
Part B Transport 30/4/13
Part C Buildings 3/12/14
Part D Drainage 3/12/14
Part E Recreation 3/12/14

Rating strategy (strategy setting 
out the rating structure of Council 
to levy rates and charges)

Current strategy 
in operation

YES 2/05/2018
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2018/2019 GOVERNANCE AND 
MANAGEMENT CHECKLIST

Requirement Assessment
Date implemented/
Effective date

Risk policy (policy outlining 
Council’s commitment and 
approach to minimising the risks 
to Council’s operations)

Current policy in 
operation

YES 22/01/2019

Fraud policy (policy outlining 
Council’s commitment and 
approach to minimising the risk 
of fraud)

Current policy in 
operation

YES 3/12/2018

Municipal emergency 
management plan (plan under 
section 20 of the Emergency 
Management Act 1986 for 
emergency prevention, response 
and recovery)

Prepared and 
maintained in 
accordance with 
section 20 of 
the Emergency 
Management 
Act 1986

YES 19/05/2017
Amended 11 December 
2018

Procurement policy (policy 
under section 186A of the Local 
Government Act 1989 outlining 
the matters, practices and 
procedures that will apply to all 
purchases of goods, services and 
works)

Prepared and 
approved in 
accordance with 
section 186A  
of the Local 
Government Act

YES 3/04/2019

Business continuity plan (plan 
setting out the actions that will 
be taken to ensure that key 
services continue to operate in 
the event of a disaster)

Current plan in 
operation

YES 23/06/2016

Disaster recovery plan (plan 
setting out the actions that will 
be undertaken to recover and 
restore business capability in the 
event of a disaster)

Current plan in 
operation

NO A Disaster Recovery Plan is 
currently being developed, 
and procedures are in place 
for recovery of business 
systems and data in the 
event of a disaster.

Risk management framework 
(framework outlining Council’s 
approach to managing risks to 
the Council’s operations)

Current 
framework in 
operation

YES 22/01/2019
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2018/2019 GOVERNANCE AND 
MANAGEMENT CHECKLIST

Requirement Assessment
Date implemented/
Effective date

Audit Committee (advisory 
committee of Council under 
section 139 of the Act whose 
role is to oversee the integrity of 
a Council’s financial reporting, 
processes to manage risks to 
the Council’s operations and 
for compliance with applicable 
legal, ethical, and regulatory 
requirements)

Committee 
established in 
accordance with 
section 139 of 
the Act

YES 23/03/2004

Internal audit (independent 
accounting professionals 
engaged by the Council 
to provide analyses and 
recommendations aimed at 
improving Council’s governance, 
risk and management controls)

Internal auditor 
engaged    

YES 5/08/2015

Performance reporting 
framework (a set of indicators 
measuring financial and non-
financial performance, including 
the performance indicators 
referred to in section 131 of the 
Act)

Current 
framework in 
operation

YES 1/07/2019

Council Plan reporting (report 
reviewing the performance of the 
Council against the Council Plan, 
including the results in relation to 
the strategic indicators, for the 
first six months of the financial 
year)

Current report YES 1st Quarter 07/11/2018
2nd Quarter 06/02/2019
3rd Quarter 01/05/2019
Final Quarter 07/08/2019

Financial reporting (quarterly 
statements to Council under 
section 138 of the Act comparing 
budgeted revenue and 
expenditure with actual revenue 
and expenditure)

Quarterly 
statements 
presented 
to Council in 
accordance with 
section 138(1) of 
the Act    

YES 1st Quarter 07/11/2018
2nd Quarter 06/02/2019
3rd Quarter 01/05/2019

Risk reporting (six-monthly 
reports of strategic risks to 
Council’s operations, their 
likelihood and consequences of 
occurring and risk minimisation 
strategies)

Reports 
prepared and 
presented

YES 3/04/2019
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2018/2019 GOVERNANCE AND 
MANAGEMENT CHECKLIST

I certify that this information presents fairly the status of Council’s governance and management arrangements.

Requirement Assessment
Date implemented/
Effective date

Performance reporting (six-
monthly reports of indicators 
measuring the results against 
financial and non-financial 
performance, including 
performance indicators referred 
to in section 131 of the Act)

Reports 
prepared and 
presented

YES 13/02/2019

Annual report (annual report 
under sections 131, 132 
and 133 of the Act to the 
community containing a report of 
operations and audited financial 
performance statements)

Annual report 
considered 
at a meeting 
of Council in 
accordance with 
section 134 of 
the Act    

YES 2/10/2019

Councillor Code of Conduct 
(Code under section 76C of 
the Act setting out the conduct 
principles and the dispute 
resolution processes to be 
followed by Councillors)

Code of conduct 
reviewed in 
accordance with 
section 76C of 
the Act

YES 8/02/2019

Delegations (a document setting 
out the powers, duties and 
functions of Council and the 
Chief Executive Officer that have 
been delegated to members of 
staff)

Delegations 
reviewed in 
accordance with 
section 98(6) of 
the Act

YES 3/04/2019

Meeting procedures (a local 
law governing the conduct of 
meetings of Council and special 
committees)

Meeting 
procedures local 
law made in 
accordance with 
section 91(1) of 
the Act    

YES 29/06/2019
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DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 
FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION

(e) A document containing details 
of all leases involving land 
which were entered into by the 
Council as lessor, including the 
lessee and the terms and the 
value of

the lease;

(f) A register maintained under 
section 224(1A) of the Act of 
authorised officers appointed 
under that section;

(g) A list of donations and grants 
made by the Council in the 
previous 12 months, including 
the names of persons who, or 
bodies which, have received 
a donation or grant and the 
amount of each donation or 
grant.

Any person wishing to view 
Prescribed Documents must make 
a written application to the Chief 
Executive Officer by completing 
the form Application to Inspect 
Prescribed Documents. This 
form is available from Council 
upon request, and may also 
be downloaded from Council’s 
website.

2. PRESCRIBED DOCUMENTS 
REGISTER

Regulation 12 of the Local 
Government (General) 
Regulations 2015, states that 
Council must make available for 
public inspection the following 
prescribed documents:

(a) A document containing details 
of overseas or interstate 
travel (other than interstate 
travel by land for less than 3 
days) undertaken in an official 
capacity by any Councillor or 
member of Council staff in the 
previous 12 months;

(b) The agendas for, and minutes 
of, ordinary and special 
meetings held in the previous 
12 months which are kept under 
section 93 of the Act, other than 
those agendas and minutes 
relating to a part of a meeting 
which was closed to members 
of the public under section 89 
of the Act and are confidential 
information within the meaning 
of section 77(2) of the Act;

(c) The minutes of meetings of 
special committees established 
under section 86 of the Act and 
held in the previous 12 months, 
other than those minutes 
relating to a part of a meeting 
which was closed to members 
of the public under section 89 
of the Act and are confidential 
information within the meaning 
of section 77(2) of the Act;

(d) A register of delegations kept 
under sections 87(1) and 98(4) 
of the Act, including the date on 
which the last review took place 
under sections 86(6) and 98(6), 
respectively, of the Act;

In accordance with the Local 
Government (General) Regulations 
2015, the following two registers 
of prescribed documents are 
available for public inspection.

1. REGISTER OF INTERESTS

Sections 81(9) and 81(10) of the 
Local Government Act 1989 
Number 11, state that the Chief 
Executive Officer must maintain a 
register of interests of Councillors, 
Special Committee members 
and nominated officers, and that 
a person wishing to view the 
register must make a written 
application to the Chief Executive 
Officer by completing the form 
Application to Inspect Register of 
Interests. This form is available 
from Council upon request, and 
may also be downloaded from 
Council’s website.
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Moorabool Shire Council adheres 
to these policies by:

•	 Distributing information about 
the Act and the charter to 
carers, and making copies of 
the charter available to people.

•	 Including information about 
the Act and charter in existing 
information kits.

•	 Putting the Act and charter 
poster on notice boards and 
information in reception areas.

•	 Using networks such as 
organisational or carer support 
groups and programs, to 
promote the Act and charter.

•	 Including the Act and charter, or 
making presentations on them, 
at forums and other events such 
as local community events.

•	 Putting information about 
the Act and charter in media 
promotions or community 
awareness strategies such as:

	 Carers Week, National Child 
Protection Week, International 
Day of People with Disability, 
Mental Health Week, World 
Alzheimer’s Day, Dementia 
Awareness Week, and Seniors 
Week.

•	 Reviewing principles, values, 
ethics, and policies, and 
consider how they can be 
aligned with the Act and 
charter, for example check that 
our human resource policies 
support carers to balance 
work and their role of carer, 
by including carers leave and 
flexible working conditions, and 
scheduling regular meetings at 
a time a carer can attend.

CARERS 
RECOGNITION

The Carers Recognition Act 
2012 sets out principles that 
recognise and support people in 
care relationships and includes 
obligations for State government, 
Councils, and organisations 
that support people in care 
relationships.

Moorabool Shire Council meets its 
obligations by ensuring:

•	 Carers and Families are treated 
with respect and dignity.

•	 Carers and families receive a 
timely response.

•	 Carers and families feel 
empowered and we strengthen 
our relationships with carers 
over time.

•	 Approach is individualised, 
flexible and culturally sensitive.

•	 Carers and families are well 
informed of their role and rights.

 
•	 Most important is their right to 

be involved.
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FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION

In accordance with section 7 
(4AA)(a) and 7(4AA)(b) of the 
Freedom of Information Act 1982,  
Council is required to publish 
certain statements in their annual 
report or separately such as on its 
website, concerning its functions 
and information available. Council 
has chosen to publish the 
statements separately however 
provides the following summary 
of the application and operation of 
the Freedom of Information Act 
1982.

Access to documents may be 
obtained through a written request 
to the Freedom of Information 
Officer, as detailed in section 17 
of the Freedom of Information 
Act 1982 and in the summary as 
follows:

•	 It should be in writing.

•	 It should identify as clearly as 
possible which document is 
being requested.

•	 It should be accompanied by 
the appropriate application 
fee (the fee may be waived in 
certain circumstances).

Requests granted in full 1

Requests granted in part, subject to specific exemptions 1

Requests denied in full, subject to specific exemptions. 1

Requests being processed as of June 30, 2018 3

Other: (where requests were withdrawn or no documents found under the FOI Act or documents 
provided outside of the FOI Act) 4

Total 10

Requests for documents in the 
possession of Council should 
be addressed to the Freedom of 
Information Officer.  Requests can 
also be lodged by email.

Access charges may also apply 
once documents have been 
processed and a decision on 
access is made (e.g. photocopying 
and search and retrieval charges).

Further information regarding FOI 
can be found at www.foi.vic.gov.
au and on the Moorabool Shire 
Council website.

In 2018-19, Council administered 
ten (10) Freedom of Information 
requests with three (3) requests 
to be administered in the next 
financial year 2019/20:
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WHISTLEBLOWERS/PROTECTED DISCLOSURE 
PROCEDURES

Disclosures made to the Council 0

Disclosures  referred to Independent Broad-based Anti- corruption  Commission  (IBAC) 
for determination as to whether they are public interest disclosures 0

Disclosed matters referred to the Council by IBAC 0

Disclosed  matters referred by Council  to IBAC or the Ombudsman for investigation 0

Investigations of disclosed matters taken over by IBAC or the Ombudsman from Council 0

Disclosed matters that the Council has declined to investigate 0

Disclosed matters that were substantiated on investigation and the action taken on completion of 
the investigation 0

Recommendations  of IBAC or the Ombudsman  under the Act that relate to the Council 0

The Protected Disclosure Act 
2012 commenced operation on 
11 February 2013. The purpose 
of the Protected Disclosure Act 
is to encourage and facilitate the 
making of disclosures of improper 
conduct by public officers and 
public bodies. The Act provides 
protection to whistleblowers who 
make disclosures in accordance 
with the Act, and establishes a 
system for the matters disclosed 
to be investigated and action to be 
taken.

In accordance with the Protected 
Disclosure Act 2012, the following 
specific reporting requirements 
have been included in Moorabool 
Shire Council’s Annual Report.
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GRANT 
SUMMARY

MOORABOOL 
SHIRE GRANTS 

RECEIVED 
2018/19

30 20 55

SuccessfulNew UnsuccessfulPending

Empower Youth Grant - Youth Engagement Support Project (YES) 

Woolpack Road Upgrade

Streamlining for Growth 2018/19 - Parwan Employment Precinct

Sustainability Victoria – E-waste Infrastructure Grants - Ballan Transfer Station

Central Enrolment Kindergarten Development Fund 

Children’s Week 2018

Victorian Government’s 2018/19 Female Friendly Facilities Fund

Bald Hill Activation Project - Feasibility Study

Victorian Youth Week Grants 2019 - Youth Forum

Regional Roads Victoria - Fixing Country Road Program

Victorian Mineral Springs Reserves Grants Program - Spargo Creek 
Mineral Springs Reserve

This Girl Can Victoria - Local Marketing Grant

Local Government Planning Grant Fund (Department of Education and Training) - 
Assessing Kindergarten and Long Day Care

Fixing Country Roads Program (Round 2) - Ballan-Meredith Road 
Bridge Rehabilitation

Fixing Country Roads Program (Round 2) - Old Melbourne Road and Dunnstown-
Yendon Roads Safety Improvements & Pavement Strengthening

Gardens for Wildlife, Moorabool - Bringing the Bush to the Suburbs 

Community Crime Prevention Grants Program - Development of a Graffiti 
Management Strategy

VicHealth Innovation Challenge Funding - Increasing Female Participation in Sport

TAC Towards Zero Community Grants - Development of a 
Community Road Safety Strategy

$470,968 

$717,500

$100,000

$60,000

$25,000

$700.00

$250,000 

$30,000 

$2,000

$630,000

$25,000

$11,500

$20,000

$426,000

$1,106,000

$57,380 

$24,600 

$20,000

$28,800 

The Moorabool Shire 
relies on funding 

from other levels of 
government to deliver 

community outcomes in 
services and projects.
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PERFORMANCE

Part  5
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2018-19 Performance Statement 
 
 
Financial Performance Indicators – Definitions 
 
"Adjusted underlying revenue" means total income other than: 

(a) non-recurrent grants used to fund capital expenditure; and 
(b) non-monetary asset contributions; and 
(c) contributions to fund capital expenditure from sources other than those referred to above 

 
"Adjusted underlying surplus (or deficit)" means adjusted underlying revenue less total expenditure 
 
"Asset renewal expenditure" means expenditure on an existing asset or on replacing an existing asset that returns 
the service capability of the asset to its original capability 
 
“Current assets” has the same meaning as in the AAS 
 
"Current liabilities" has the same meaning as in the AAS 
 
“Non-current assets” means all assets other than current assets 
 
"Non-current liabilities" means all liabilities other than current liabilities 
 
“Non-recurrent grant” means a grant obtained on the condition that it be expended in a specified manner and is 
not expected to be received again during the period covered by a council's Strategic Resource Plan 
 
"Own-source revenue" means adjusted underlying revenue other than revenue that is not under the control of 
council (including government grants 
 
"Population "means the resident population estimated by council 
 
“Rate revenue” means revenue from general rates, municipal charges, service rates and service charges 
 
"Recurrent grant "means a grant other than a non-recurrent grant 
 
"Residential rates" means revenue from general rates, municipal charges, service rates and service charges levied 
on residential properties 
 
"Restricted cash" means cash and cash equivalents, within the meaning of the AAS, that are not available for use 
other than for a purpose for which it is restricted, and includes cash to be used to fund capital works expenditure 
from the previous financial year 
 
"Unrestricted cash" means all cash and cash equivalents other than restricted cash. 
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2018-19 Performance Statement 
 
Other Information - Basis of preparation 
 
Council is required to prepare and include a performance statement within its annual report. The performance 
statement includes the results of the prescribed sustainable capacity, service performance and financial performance 
indicators and measures together with a description of the municipal district and an explanation of material variations 
in the results. This statement has been prepared to meet the requirements of the Local Government Act 1989 and 
Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014. 
 
Where applicable the results in the performance statement have been prepared on accounting bases consistent with 
those reported in the Financial Statements. The other results are based on information drawn from council 
information systems or from third parties (e.g. Australian Bureau of Statistics). 
 
The performance statement presents the actual results for the current year and for the prescribed financial 
performance indicators and measures, the results forecast by the council’s strategic resource plan. The Local 
Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 requires explanation of any material variations in the results 
contained in the performance statement. Council has adopted materiality thresholds relevant to each indicator and 
measure and explanations have not been provided for variations below the materiality thresholds unless the variance 
is considered to be material because of its nature. 
 
The forecast figures included in the performance statement are those adopted by Council in its Strategic Resource 
Plan on 3 July 2019 and which forms part of the council plan. The Strategic Resource Plan includes estimates based on 
key assumptions about the future that were relevant at the time of adoption and aimed at achieving sustainability 
over the long term. Detailed information on the actual financial results is contained in the General Purpose Financial 
Statements. The Strategic Resource Plan can be obtained by contacting Council. 
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2018-19 Performance Statement 
 
Certification of the performance statement 
 
 
In my opinion, the accompanying performance statement has been prepared in accordance with the Local 
Government Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014. 
 
 
 
                                                           
Steven Ivelja CPA 
Principal Accounting Officer 
Dated: 04 September 2019 
 
 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying performance statement of the (council name) for the year ended 30 June 2019 
presents fairly the results of council’s performance in accordance with the Local Government Act 1989 and the Local 
Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014. 
 
The performance statement contains the relevant performance indicators, measures and results in relation to service 
performance, financial performance and sustainable capacity. 
 
At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances that would render any particulars in the performance 
statement to be misleading or inaccurate. 
 
We have been authorised by the council and by the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 to 
certify this performance statement in its final form. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cr. Tonia Dudzik 
Councillor 
Dated: 04 September 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cr. John Keogh 
Councillor 
Dated: 04 September 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Derek Madden 
Chief Executive Officer 
Dated: 04 September 2019 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
To the Councillors of Moorabool Shire Council 

Opinion I have audited the accompanying performance statement of Moorabool Shire 
Council (the council) which comprises the:  

• description of municipality for the year ended 30 June 2019 
• sustainable capacity indicators for the year ended 30 June 2019 
• service performance indicators for the year ended 30 June 2019 
• financial performance indicators for the year ended 30 June 2019 
• other information 
• certification of the performance statement. 

In my opinion, the performance statement presents fairly, in all material 
respects, the performance of the council for the year ended 30 June 2019, in 
accordance with the performance reporting requirements of Part 6 of the 
Local Government Act 1989. 

Basis for Opinion I have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 which 
incorporates the Australian Standards on Assurance Engagements. I further 
describe my responsibilities under that Act and those standards in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Performance Statement section 
of my report.  

My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. My staff and I 
are independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of 
the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of 
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of 
the performance statement in Victoria. My staff and I have also fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for my opinion. 

Councillors' 
responsibilities for the 
performance 
statement  

The Councillors of the council are responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the performance statement in accordance with the 
performance reporting requirements of the Local Government Act 1989, and 
for such internal control as the Councillors determine is necessary to enable 
the preparation and fair presentation of the statement of performance that is 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s 
responsibilities for the 
audit of the 
performance 
statement 

As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion 
on the performance statement based on the audit. My objectives for the audit 
are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the performance 
statement as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Standards on Assurance 
Engagements will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
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Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the decisions of users taken on the basis of this performance 
statement.  

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Standards on Assurance 
Engagements, I exercise professional judgement and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. I also:  

• identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 
performance statement, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control. 

• obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the council’s internal control 

• evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the 
performance statement, including the disclosures, and whether the 
performance statement represents the underlying events and results in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

I communicate with the Councillors regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit. 

 
 
 
 

  

MELBOURNE 
9 September 2019 

Jonathan Kyvelidis 
as delegate for the Auditor-General of Victoria 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
To the Councillors of Moorabool Shire Council 

Opinion I have audited the financial report of Moorabool Shire Council (the council) which comprises 
the: 

• balance sheet as at 30 June 2019 
• comprehensive income statement for the year then ended 
• statement of changes in equity for the year then ended 
• statement of cash flows for the year then ended 
• statement of capital works for the year then ended 
• notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies 
• certification of the financial statements. 

In my opinion the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the council as at 30 June 2019 and its financial performance and cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with the financial reporting requirements of Part 6 of the 
Local Government Act 1989 and applicable Australian Accounting Standards.   

Basis for 
Opinion 

I have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 which incorporates the 
Australian Auditing Standards. I further describe my responsibilities under that Act and 
those standards in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section 
of my report.  

My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. My staff and I are 
independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting 
Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in Victoria. My 
staff and I have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my opinion. 

Councillors’ 
responsibilities 
for the 
financial 
report 

The Councillors of the council are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Local 
Government Act 1989, and for such internal control as the Councillors determine is 
necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of a financial report that is free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial report, the Councillors are responsible for assessing the council’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless it is inappropriate to do so. 
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Auditor’s 
responsibilities 
for the audit 
of the financial 
report 

As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial 
report based on the audit. My objectives for the audit are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.  

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also:  

• identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the council’s internal control 

• evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Councillors 

• conclude on the appropriateness of the Councillors’ use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the council’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
council to cease to continue as a going concern.  

• evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

I communicate with the Councillors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that I identify during my audit. 

 
 
 

  

MELBOURNE 
9 September 2019 

Jonathan Kyvelidis 
as delegate for the Auditor-General of Victoria 
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